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A Note About The Author

Ian Lancaster Fleming was bom  on the 28th of May 1908 
in Canterbury, England. He was a newspaper journalist and 
a writer. He created one of the most famous characters in 
twentieth-century fiction -  James Bond.

Ian Fleming was educated at Eton -  a famous school for 
boys. After he left Eton, he trained to be a soldier at Sandhurst 
Military Academy, but he left after a short time and went 
to Europe. He studied languages at M unich and Geneva 
universities.

Fleming’s first job was as a journalist in the Soviet Union. 
From 1929 to 1933, he worked in Moscow for a news agency 
called Reuters. W hile he was employed by this organization, he 
heard about Soviet spies who sold government secrets to other 
countries. Fleming sent reports about these spies and their 
special investigations to Reuters in London. W hen he returned 
to London in 1933, he worked first as a banker and then as a 
broker -  an agent who buys and sells goods for other people.

During the Second World War (1 9 3 9 -1 9 4 5 ), Ian 
Fleming was an officer in the British navy. He worked in the 
Department of Naval Intelligence. He became the assistant 
to the highest official who employed spies for Britain. Part of 
Fleming’s training involved underwater swimming and fixing a 
limpet m ine1 to the bottom of a ship. This is something that 
James Bond has to do in one of the final chapters of Live and 
Let Die. After the war, Fleming worked for The Sunday Times 
newspaper.

Fleming decided to become a writer during the war. He wrote 
about spies and dangerous criminals. In 1952, he completed 
his first novel. In the same year, he married A nne Rothermere. 
He was 44 years old.
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Fleming’s first novel -  Casino Roy ale -  was about a handsome 
British secret agent called James Bond. Bond was a spy who 
loved danger, women, fast cars, gambling2 and good food and 
drink. He was well paid for the dangerous work he had to do. 
James Bond also had a ‘Licence to Kill’ which meant that 
sometimes he was told to kill his enemies.

Casino Royale was very successful and the adventures of 
James Bond, agent number 007, became very popular. By the 
time of Fleming’s death on the 12th of August 1964, more than 
forty million copies of the James Bond books had been sold. 
T he books are: Casino Royale (1953), Live and Let Die (1954), 
M oonraker (1955), Diamonds A re Forever (1956), From Russia 
With Love (1957), Doctor N o  (1958), Goldfinger (1959), For 
Your Eyes Only (1960), Thunderball (1961), The Spy W ho Loved  
Me (1962), On Her Majesty’s Secret Service (1963), You Only 
Live Twice (1964), The M an With the Golden Gun  (1965) and 
Octopussy and The Living Daylights (1966).

The first Ian Fleming book to be made into a film was Dr 
N o. T h e film was first shown in 1962 and starred the actor 
Sean Connery. Live and Let Die was made into a film in 1973, 
with the actor Roger Moore starring as James Bond. By 2008, 
seven different actors had played the part of Secret A gent 007. 
T he Bond films continue to be huge international successes. 
Millions of people all over the world have seen and loved the 
films of Fleming’s books.
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A Note About This Story

The story of Live and Let Die takes place in the 1950s. Like 
many of the James Bond adventures, in Live and Let Die Secret 
Agent 007 has a very intelligent and powerful criminal as an 
enemy. This criminal is thought to be a Russian spy. T he Cold 
War, the period following the Second World War from 1945 
to 1989, was a dangerous time. The Soviet U nion sent spies 
into Europe and America during those years and people were 
frightened of an atomic war.

A t that time American cars were the size of small trucks 
and air travel was a luxury for most people. In the U SA , most 
people travelled the long distances across the country by train. 
It was usual to eat and sleep while on the trains.

Some of the story takes place in Harlem, a neighbourhood on 
New York’s M anhattan Island where many African Americans 
still live and work today. In 1954, when Ian Fleming was 
writing Live and Let Die, the number of black people living in 
that part of the city was at its highest.

More of the story’s action takes place on and around 
the Caribbean island of Jamaica. During the last year of the 
Second World War, Ian Fleming travelled to Jamaica for a 
naval conference3. He was only on the island for a short time, 
but he was very interested in the birds and shells and fell in 
love with the place. Fleming decided that he wanted to come 
and live on the island and immediately started making plans to 
return. After the war he built a house called Goldeneye on the 
north coast of the island.

Jamaica was officially under British rule until 1958, four 
years after Fleming wrote this book, when it became a province 
of the British W est Indies. It finally became fully independent 
in 1962.
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An Interview with M

One morning, James Bond was called to the office of 
his boss, M, head of the British Secret Service. Miss 

Moneypenny, M ’s private secretary, gave Bond a warm smile 
when he arrived.

‘007 is here now, Sir,’ she said into the intercom4 on her 
desk.

‘Send him in,’ came the reply.
Bond knocked and walked into M ’s office. M was sitting 

behind a large leather-topped desk. A  reading light made a 
pool of light across the desk. T he rest of the room was darkened 
by the London fog outside the windows.

‘Good morning, 007 ,’ said M. ‘S it down.’
Bond sat in the chair which faced M across the desk.
‘Have you ever seen one of these?’ M took a gold coin 

from his pocket and pushed it halfway across the desk towards 
Bond.

Bond picked it up and turned it over in his hand. ‘N o,’ he 
said. ‘But it’s worth about five hundred pounds, perhaps . . . ’

‘Fifteen hundred,’ said M. ‘It’s an English coin, o f course. A  
Rose Noble of Edward the Fourth.’ He took more gold coins 
from his pocket and dropped them on the desk in front of 
Bond -  Spanish, French and Dutch coins. ‘They’re worth a lot 
of money just as gold, but much more to people who collect 
coins. If you take a look, you’ll notice that they were all made 
before 1650. Bloody Morgan, the pirate, was Governor and 
Commander in Chief5 of Jam aica from 1675 to 1688. These 
coins are almost certainly part of Morgan’s treasure.

‘Nearly a thousand of them have come into the United 
States in the last few months. And they continue to come in,

An Interview with M

finding their way to banks and coin collectors’ shops. But the 
FBI has a problem. If they admit that they know about the 
coins, the coins will stop coming into the country. They’ll be 
melted down6 into gold bars7 and will be lost. They don’t want 
that to happen.

‘A t the moment, someone is using a network8 of people
-  people who are working as porters, sleeping car attendants9 
on trains or truck drivers -  to spread the coins all across the 
United States. Quite innocent people, like Zachary Sm ith . . . ’

M opened a thick file which had T O P  S E C R E T  written 
on it and took out a single piece of paper. He began to read: 
‘Zachary Sm ith, 35. Works as train attendant. Address 90b W est 
126th Street, in Harlem, New York City. O n 215t November, 
he sold four sixteenth- and seventeenth-century gold coins to 
Fein Jewels in Lennox Avenue for one hundred dollars. W hen 
interviewed later, Sm ith said they had been sold to him in a 
Harlem bar for twenty dollars each. T he seller was a black man 
he had never seen before. He told Sm ith that the coins were 
each worth fifty dollars. But Sm ith wanted cash immediately, 
so he was happy to sell them to Fein Jewels for twenty-five 
dollars each.’

M put the paper back into the file. ‘A ll the sales have been 
in Harlem or Florida.’

‘And you think they’re part of Bloody Morgan’s treasure,’ 
said Bond.

‘T h at’s almost certain, because of the dates on the coins,’ 
agreed M. ‘But Bloody Morgan’s treasure is not in America, 
it’s in Jamaica. A  boat, the Secatur, has been regularly sailing 
from a small island on the north coast of Jamaica, through the 
Florida Keys and into the G ulf o f M exico. This yacht10 sails 
to S t Petersburg, near Tampa, on the west coast of Florida. 
T he FBI has discovered that the boat and the island belong 
to a man called “Mr Big”. H e’s a black gangster11 who lives in 
Harlem. Have you heard about him?’
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M pointed to the file in front o f  him. ‘You’ll find out more in heie.

A n  Interview with M

‘N o,’ said Bond.
‘We suspect that this Jam aican treasure is being used to get 

money for Russian spies in Am erica,’ said M quietly. ‘Why? We 
think Mr Big is a Russian agent and a member of SM E R SH 12.’ 
M pointed to the file in front of him. ‘You’ll find out more in 
here.’

‘I ’d like to meet him ,’ said Bond. ‘I’d like to meet any 
member of SM ER SH .’

M handed him the thick file. ‘I t ’s a jo in t C IA  and FBI job. 
Be ready to start in a week.’
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New York

Д  pleasant-looking man met Bond at Idlewild Airport13 in 
x j l  New York. ‘My name’s Halloran,’ he said. ‘I’m pleased 
to meet you, Mr Bond. Would you follow me?’

Outside the airport building, a large black Buick car was 
waiting. Halloran and Bond climbed into it and the driver 
took them towards the centre of Manhattan. After a time, they 
stopped outside the best hotel in New York, the S t Regis, at 
the corner of 5th Avenue and 55th Street. A  middle-aged man 
in a dark blue coat and a black hat came out to meet them.

Halloran said, ‘Mr Bond, this is my boss, Captain Dexter. 
Can I leave him with you now, Captain?’

‘Sure,’ said Dexter. ‘Ask for his bags to be sent up to Room 
2100. Top floor. I’ll go with Mr Bond and see that he has 
everything he wants.’

Bond turned to say goodbye to Halloran. Across 55th Street 
was a black Chevrolet car. Bond saw it suddenly move out 
into the busy traffic. T h e driver was a black woman wearing 
a chauffeur’s14 uniform. For a moment, Bond also saw the 
passenger in the back seat of the car. Just before the car rushed 
away, the huge grey-black face turned slowly and looked back 
at Bond through the back window. Was this the face of Mr 
Big?

Bond followed Captain Dexter inside the hotel and into 
the lift. They got out at the twenty-first floor and walked to 
Room 2100. Dexter unlocked the door.

The room was an expensive-looking sitting room with 
comfortable chairs, light grey walls and a long sideboard. This 
low cupboard had several bottles of drink and glasses on it. 
T h e January sunshine shone through a wide window.
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A t that moment, the bedroom door opened and a tall, thin 
young man with blond hair came into the room. He had a wide 
smile on his face. Bond stared at him in surprise.

‘Felix Leiter!’ said Bond. ‘W hat are you doing here?’ He 
shook the other man’s hand warmly. ‘Are you on this job?’ 

Leiter smiled. ‘The C IA 15 thought we did well on that 
casino job, James, so yes, here I am. I’m the link between the 
C IA  and our friends of the FBI16.’ He nodded his head towards 
Captain Dexter, who did not look especially pleased about it. 
‘It’s the FBI’s case17 here in America, but the C IA  is interested 
in the Jam aican part of the job. You’re here to look after the 
Jamaican side of things for the British. S it down and let’s have 
a drink. Lunch is on its way.’

They sat down and Leiter gave Bond a large glass. As Bond 
started to drink his martini, Captain Dexter said, ‘Now, Mr 
Bond, tell us what you know about this case.’
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A Mysterious Parcel

The morning after his arrival in New York, Bond woke up in 
his bedroom at the S t Regis.

Dexter had given him plenty of information about Mr 
Big. He was 45 years old, had been born in Haiti and was half 
black and half French. T he gangster had got his name because 
of his large size and because of the initials o f his full name: 
Buonaparte Ignace Gallia -  B-I-G . After moving to America, 
he had various different jobs. T h en  he was forced to jo in  the 
American armed forces during the Second World War. Because 
of his excellent French, he worked for the American Secret 
Service in France, where he worked closely with a Russian spy 
who was doing a similar job. After the war he disappeared for 
five years, probably to Moscow. He returned to Harlem in 1950 
and bought several nightclubs. T h e FBI suspected that he was 
working as a Russian spy, but they could never be totally sure.

He soon became a man to fear. People who went against him 
were murdered or mysteriously disappeared, never to be seen 
again. Those who did not listen to his instructions had their 
homes burnt down or their families threatened18. Naturally, all 
this helped to make Mr Big a very powerful man. Very soon he 
had large criminal organizations working for him, with his own 
spies everywhere. They were all ready at a moment’s notice to 
report back to him what they had seen.

Bond had questioned Dexter and Leiter very closely about 
Mr Big’s connections to SM ERSH . He was now almost certain 
that Mr Big was a member. But the porters, the truck drivers 
and all the other men who passed on information to him had 
no idea that they were giving it to a Russian spy. Fear of death 
and cruelty was enough to stop them asking questions.
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A Mysterious Parcel

Bond picked up the telephone and asked for breakfast to 
be sent to his room. Then  he collected the newspapers and 
parcels that had been put quietly on his hall table earlier that 
morning.

Yesterday afternoon, a man had come and measured him 
for two dark blue suits. A nother man had brought some 
uncomfortable white shirts with long points to the collars19. He 
had also had to accept six unusually bright and patterned ties, 
some dark socks with large patterns on them, a plain grey hat, 
and two pairs of hand-made, black casual20 shoes. To hold all of 
these things, there was a light-weight American suitcase.

He was allowed to keep his own Beretta .25 gun and 
shoulder holster21. His other things were going to be collected 
at midday. They would be sent on to Jam aica to wait for him.

It was all part of the Americanization of Bond, ordered by 
the FBI. His dark hair was now shorter and he had been told 
that he was from Boston, New England, and was visiting New 
York during his holidays. He had been reminded to ask for the 
‘check’ rather than the ‘bill’ in restaurants and to say ‘cab’ 
instead of ‘taxi’.

Bond had a shower and dressed. Later, in a white shirt and 
blue trousers, he opened the door for the waiter. The man 
brought in Bond’s breakfast, together with a brown parcel 
about a foot22 square. Bond told the waiter to put the parcel on 
the sideboard. Something else from Leiter, he guessed. It was 
only after he had finished eating that he heard the very soft 
ticking noise. It was coming from the sideboard. Tick-tock ... 
tick-tock ...  tick-tock ...

Bond immediately dived to the floor behind an armchair. 
He waited nervously.

C rack ! T he parcel exploded and fell to the floor.
Bond looked over the back of the armchair. The glasses 

and bottles on the sideboard were broken, and there was a 
black mark from smoke on the wall behind them. He got up



A Mysterious Parcel

slowly and went straight to the window and opened it. Then 
he picked up the phone and called Dexter. Soon after, there 
was a knock on the door.

‘W ho is it?’ Bond called.
‘Dexter.’
Dexter came in, followed by a young man with a black box 

under his arm. T he young man at once went down on his knees 
beside what was left of the parcel. He opened his box and put 
on some special gloves to protect his hands. Th en  he began to 
collect small bits of metal and glass from the carpet. Also lying 
on the carpet was a small metal tube. From it, the young man 
took out a piece of paper. Bond and Dexter read it:

The heart o f  the clock has stopped ticking. The beats o f  your
heart are numbered. I know that number and 1 have started
to count.

The message was signed: 1234567 ■■■'!
‘Mr Big,’ said Bond.
‘But how did he know you were here?’ asked Dexter.
Bond told him about the black Chevrolet car outside the 

hotel.
‘But the point is,’ said Bond, ‘how did he know what I 

was here for? It shows he’s got spies everywhere, including in 
W ashington and in the C IA .’
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The Whisper

Bond spent the morning on 5th Avenue and on Broadway, 
looking in shop windows and watching the passing crowds. 

He had lunch at a restaurant on Lexington Avenue, then took 
a taxi to the police headquarters in the centre of New York. He 
had arranged23 to meet Leiter and Dexter there at two thirty.

A  Lieutenant Binswanger of Homicide24 showed them Mr 
Big’s police record and the reports about the Secatur yacht. 
The boat had often sailed into St Petersburg over the last six 
months. It always stopped at the jetty25 of the ‘Ourobouros 
Worm and Bait26 Shippers’ -  a company whose main business 
was to sell live bait to fishing clubs in Florida and the Gulf of 
M exico. It also sold seashells, coral27 and aquarium28 fish.

According to the manager of Ourobouros, the Secatur did 
big business with his company and brought in shells and 
tropical29 fish from Jamaica. These were bought and then 
stored in the Ourobouros warehouse30. Later, the shells and 
fish were sold to shops up and down the coast.

As they were leaving his office, Lieutenant Binswanger 
said, ‘More gold has been coming in recently. About a hundred 
coins a week in Harlem and New York alone. Do you want us 
to do anything about it?’

‘T h e boss says not yet,’ Dexter told him.
W hen Bond, Dexter and Leiter were out on the pavement, 

Dexter said, ‘I had some instructions from Washington this 
morning. I’ve got to look after the Harlem side of the case, 
and you two have been asked to go down to S t  Petersburg 
tomorrow. Leiter’s got to find out what he can there, then 
move on to Jamaica with you, Mr Bond. Is there anything else 
I can do for you?’
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The Whisper

‘If you don’t mind, Leiter and I would like to go to Harlem 
this evening and have a look round,’ said Bond.

Dexter thought for a moment. ‘O K ,’ he said. ‘But don’t get 
hurt. There’s no one to help you up there. And don’t make 
trouble for us with Mr Big. U ntil we’re ready to get him, we say 
“live and let live”.’

Bond smiled. ‘In my job, when I meet a man like Mr Big, I 
have another saying. It’s “live and let die”.’

‘Maybe,’ said Dexter. ‘But you take my orders while you’re 
here, Mr Bond.’ He waved his hand to stop a passing taxi. The 
yellow car stopped, Dexter got in and then Bond and Leiter 
watched the car drive away.

‘W ell, what about going to Harlem tonight, Felix?’ asked 
Bond.

‘Sure,’ said Leiter. ‘I’ll meet you in the King Cole Bar of the 
S t Regis at six thirty.’

Up in Harlem, at the big telephone switchboard31, ‘The 
W hisper32’ was half asleep. A ll his telephone lines were quiet. 
Suddenly, a light shone on the board -  an important light. 

‘Yes, Boss,’ he said softly into his headset33.
‘Tell all spies to watch for three men,’ said a slow, deep 

voice. A  description of Leiter, Bond and Dexter followed. 
‘They may be coming in this evening or tomorrow. Tell them 
to watch carefully on 1st to 8th, and the other avenues. The 
nightclubs, too. Call me when you know where they are.’

‘Yes, Boss,’ said T he Whisper, breathing fast. Soon after, he 
was whispering quickly and softly late into the evening.

A t six o’clock, Bond had a cold shower and dressed carefully. 
He wore a white shirt and put his leather shoulder holster on 
top of it. N ext he put his Beretta into the holster. He looked 
at the casual shoes the FBI had given him. T hen he reached
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under the bed and pulled out a pair of his own shoes and put 
them on. Under the leather, the toecaps were made of steel34.

A t twenty-five past six, he went down to the King Cole 
Bar. A  few minutes later, Felix Leiter came in and sat down. 
His head of yellow hair was now coloured black and he wore 
a bright blue suit with a white shirt and a black-and-white 
spotted tie.

‘Mr Big’s people may have my description,’ Leiter said, 
and gave Bond a big smile. ‘W e’ll catch a bus on 5 th Avenue. 
You won’t find many cabs that want to go to Harlem after it’s 
dark.’
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Harlem

Three men waited at the bus stop on the com er of 5th Avenue 
and Cathedral Parkway. They were wet and bored. They 

had been watching the traffic on 5 th Avenue since four thirty, 
but now a bus stopped and one of the men got on it. He saw 
the two white men and sat down on a seat behind them. He 
had been given descriptions and he recognized Bond, but not 
the other man.

A t the next stop, he got off the bus and hurried to the 
nearest public phone. T he Whisper questioned him urgently35, 
then immediately started to pass on the information.

‘Boss, the Englishman is on a bus on 5th Avenue. He’s got 
a friend with him, but the friend doesn’t seem to match the 
description of either of the other two.’ T he Whisper then 
described Leiter. ‘They’re both coming north.’

‘W arn36 the clubs and get this information to Tee-Hee 
Johnson, M cThing, Blabbermouth Foley, Sam Miami . . . ’ said 
the voice at the other end of the line. It spoke for another five 
minutes. After that, T he Whisper began giving out the news.

From the moment Bond and Leiter walked into Sugar Ray’s 
club on 7th Avenue, there was a team of men and women 
watching them or waiting to watch them. These men and 
women reported what they saw to T he Whisper.

The famous nightclub was crowded, and the walls were 
covered with pictures of Sugar Ray Robinson, the famous 
boxer37. Bond and Leiter found an empty table, sat down and 
ordered drinks.

As Bond was paying the waiter, Leiter said suddenly, ‘Do 
you know where Mr Big is tonight?’
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T he waiter’s eyes opened wide. He moved close to Leiter. 
‘I’ve got a wife and kids, Sir,’ he said out of the corner of his 
mouth. ‘Don’t ask me that.’ Then  he hurried away.

‘Mr Big’s got the best protection of all,’ said Leiter. ‘Fear.’
They finished their drinks and went out onto 7th Avenue. 

The rain had stopped but there was an icy-cold wind. They 
moved along with the other people on the pavement, but the 
looks they were given were not friendly. T he streets were dirty 
and many of the buildings were dark and unwelcoming. Bond 
wondered what secrets were held behind some of the closed 
doors.

‘W e’ll go to Ma Frazier’s, further up the Avenue,’ said Leiter. 
‘It has the best food in Harlem.’

They had an excellent meal of Fried Chicken Maryland 
with bacon and sweetcorn38. But when Leiter asked the waiter 
about Mr Big, the man pretended39 not to hear. W hen they 
had finished eating and Bond was paying the bill, Leiter tried 
again.

‘Sorry, Sir,’ said the waiter. ‘I don’t remember anyone with 
that name.’

By the time they left the restaurant, it was ten thirty. They 
took a taxi to the Savoy Ballroom, where they had drinks and 
watched the dancers in the huge, crowded hall. Bond thought 
many of the girls were very beautiful and he found the music 
exciting. He almost forgot what he was there for.

‘Great, isn’t it?’ said Leiter. ‘But we’d better move on. I’ll 
have a walk around while you pay for the drinks. I ’ll see if I can 
get any information about where Mr Big is. W e don’t want to 
have to go to all his places.’

They met outside the entrance a few minutes later, then 
walked up the street looking for a taxi.

‘It cost me twenty dollars,’ said Leiter, ‘but I was told he’ll 
be at T he Boneyard on Lennox Avenue soon after midnight. 
I ’ll take you to the Yeah Man club on 7th Avenue first, then
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He moved close to Leiter. ‘I ’ve got a  wife and kids, Sir, 
he said out o f  the corner o f  his mouth. ‘D on’t ask me that.’

Harlem

we’ll move on to T he Boneyard at about twelve thirty. There’s 
a girl dancer there called G -G  Sumatra. I ’m sure you’ll like her 
very much, James.’

T he big switchboard was almost quiet. The two men had been 
checked in and out of Sugar Ray’s, Ma Frazier’s, the Savoy 
Ballroom and Yeah Man. T he last call came at twelve thirty as 
Bond and Leiter were on their way to T he Boneyard.

Mr Big spoke on the phone to the head waiter of The 
Boneyard. ‘Two white men are coming in. Give them table Z.’ 
He made two more phone calls. O ne was to the M C, the Master 
of Ceremonies, the man introducing the entertainment.

‘Put the lights out at the end of G -G ’s act40,’ he said.
‘Yes, Sir, Boss,’ said the M C.
T he other call was to four men who were playing cards in 

a downstairs room. It was a long call and the instructions were 
carefully explained and very detailed.

A t twelve forty-five, Bond and Leiter paid their taxi driver and 
walked into T he Boneyard. T he head waiter met them and 
took them to a table in the com er of the club by the small, 
crowded dance floor.

Bond looked round. It was not a large room, but there were 
about fifty tables and about two hundred people. T h e music 
stopped. T he four-man band carried their musical instruments 
away, and the red light under the glass dance floor was turned 
off. Instead, pencil-thin lights in the roof came on and shone 
on coloured glass balls that hung around the walls -  yellow, 
blue and red.

There were calls of ‘W here’s G -G ?’ and ‘Come on, G -G !’ 
from the crowd.

Suddenly, the M C came out onto the dance floor. A  single 
white light shone down on him as the rest of the room went 
dark. There was silence.
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Harlem

‘Folks, it’s tim e!’ he said, smiling. He put out his right hand. 
‘Mr Jungles Japhet and his drums!’

A nother light came on and the crowd clapped excitedly. 
Across the floor, four smiling, black men in red shirts and 
white trousers sat behind four drums of different sizes.

‘And now, friends,’ said the M C, ‘G -G  ... SU M A T R A !’ 
T he last word was a shout.

Two huge black men ran out onto the dance floor. They 
were carrying a young woman. She was wearing a long black 
coat and had a black mask41 across her eyes. The men put her 
down in the middle of the floor, then moved away into the 
darkness.

The crowd was suddenly silent. T he four men started to 
play the drums slowly and loudly. The girl began to dance -  
slowly at first and then a little faster. She put her hand up to 
her neck and the coat fell away from her. Now she was wearing 
a small black dress. Her body was small, brown and beautiful. 
T he drums beat faster . ..  she moved faster with them, turning 
round and round. The drums beat louder . ..  she picked up the 
coat and threw it off the dance floor.

Some minutes later, the lights suddenly went out. The room 
was in total darkness and the crowd started shouting.

Bond felt cold air on his face. A t the same time, he realized 
that the shouts from the crowd were disappearing.

‘H ey!’ shouted Leiter. His voice was close but sounded 
strange.

T hen something closed above Bond’s head. He put his hand 
behind him and it touched a moving wall.

‘Lights,’ said a voice quietly.
Both of Bond’s arms were being held tightly and he was 

pushed down in his chair. Leiter still sat opposite him across 
the same table, table Z, but with a huge man holding his arms. 
They were in the small room downstairs. To their right and left 
were two more men, each one holding a gun.
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O ne of the men put his gun against Bond’s stomach. Then 
he moved his free hand across Bond until he found Bond’s 
Beretta. He took it and gave it to the other man with a gun.

‘Give that to the Boss, Tee-Hee,’ he said. ‘Take the 
Englishman up. His guard will go with you. His friend will stay 
with m e.’

‘Yes, Sir,’ said the man called Tee-Hee. He was fat and wore 
a chocolate-coloured shirt.

Bond was pulled up onto his feet. He had one foot under 
a leg of the table and he pulled it hard. There was a crash of 
glass. A t the same moment, Leiter kicked backwards behind 
his chair. His foot hit his guard’s leg. Bond did the same, but 
missed. Then  Leiter’s guard threw him against the wall so 
hard that Leiter’s nose was almost smashed. W hen he turned 
round, blood was pouring out of it.

The man giving the orders spoke to Bond’s guard. ‘Take 
him away. Mr Big’s waiting.’ He turned to Bond. ‘Say goodbye 
to your friend. You probably won’t see each other again.’

Bond smiled at Leiter. ‘See you later,’ he said.
Bond’s guard turned him round and pushed him against 

part of the wall. A  door opened suddenly, and the man called 
Tee-Hee pushed past them.

‘This way,’ he said, and then the door closed behind them.

25



_6_ 

Mr Big

Bond was taken through several doors to a large 
warehouse by his guard and Tee-Hee. They walked across 

the warehouse floor to a metal door, and Tee-Hee rang a bell. 
After a moment, the door opened. A  man with a gun stepped 
back and they went through into a hallway.

‘You can go in, Tee-Hee,’ said the man with the gun.
Tee-Hee knocked on a door in front of them, opened it and 

then took Bond into the room. Mr Big sat behind an expensive 
desk, his huge head resting against the back of his chair. It was 
a great football of a head, twice the normal size and very nearly 
round. There were no hairs on the head and the skin was grey- 
black. T h e face was like the face of a week-old dead man.

There was nothing on the desk except an intercom with 
about twenty buttons and a very small riding whip42. Bond’s 
guard led him across the thick carpet to a low chair. Bond sat 
down and faced the man across the desk.

Mr Big looked at him. There was one high window above his 
head, and all of the other walls were covered with bookshelves. 
Bond could not see a door.

Mr Big spoke. ‘Stay, Tee-Hee,’ he said. His eyes moved to 
the other man. ‘You can go, M iami.’

‘Yes, Sir, Boss,’ they both said.
Bond heard a door open and close. He put a hand to his 

pocket to find his cigarettes.
Mr Big spoke. ‘You can smoke, Mr Bond. Do not try to do 

anything else. I hear that you have a double-0 number -  007. 
W hich means you have had to kill a man. Have you been sent 
over here to kill me?’

‘So Moscow sent him my description,’ Bond thought.
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‘Mr Bond, you must answer me if you and your friend want 
to stay alive,’ said Mr Big. ‘And don’t try to lie to me. I shall 
know if you do.’

Bond answered carefully. ‘English gold coins have been 
bought and sold in America. Edward IV Rose Nobles,’ he said. 
‘Some have been sold in Harlem. The American government 
asked for help to discover where they’re corning from. I came to 
Harlem to investigate43.1 came with a man from the American 
treasury44, who I hope is now safely on his way back to his 
hotel.’

‘Mr Leiter is an agent for the CIA , not the treasury,’ said 
Mr Big. ‘He is in a very dangerous situation at the moment.’ 
He thought for a moment, then said, ‘Tee-Hee, tie Mr Bond 
to his chair.’

Bond started to get up from his seat.
‘Don’t move, Mr Bond,’ said Mr Big. ‘Unless you want to 

be shot.’
Bond sat down again. Immediately a belt was passed round 

his body. Two belts went round his wrists and were tied to the 
arms of the chair. Then two more were tied round his legs.

Mr Big pushed down a button on the intercom. ‘Send in 
Miss Solitaire.’

Part of a bookcase to the right of the desk opened, and a 
very beautiful woman came in. T he woman looked over Bond, 
inch45 by inch, from his head to his feet.

She.turned to Mr Big. ‘Yes?’ she asked simply.
Mr Big did not move his head. He spoke to Bond.
‘This is a very clever woman, Mr Bond,’ he said. ‘She is 

telepathic46. She knows at once when someone is not telling 
the truth.’ He turned and looked at her coldly. ‘I ’m going to 
marry her because she is so special. But at the moment she will 
have nothing to do with men. T h at is why, in Haiti, where she 
comes from, she was called “Solitaire47”.’

‘S it down,’ he said quietly to her. ‘Tell me if this man lies.’
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The woman looked over Bond, inch by inch.

Mr Big

The woman got a chair and sat down near Bond. Her 
blue eyes looked into his, and they seemed to have some sort 
of message for him. She was wearing a long white evening 
dress which showed the shape of her beautiful body. She had 
diamond earrings, and a diamond bracelet on her left wrist, but 
no rings on her fingers. As he watched her, she leaned forward, 
her knee almost touching his.

T he silent message was clear, and a warm smile must have 
appeared on Bond’s face. Suddenly, Mr Big picked up the 
riding whip from the desk and h it the girl cruelly across her 
shoulders.

‘S it up!’ he said.
She sat up slowly. She had a pack of playing cards48 in her 

hands -  and used them to send Bond another silent message. 
She opened the pack so that the knave of hearts was opposite 
the queen of spades. Then she brought the two halves of the 
pack together so that the two cards ‘kissed’.

A t no time did she look at Bond, but now he was sure that 
he had a friend.

‘Are you ready, Solitaire?’ asked Mr Big.
‘Yes, the cards are ready,’ she said.
‘Mr Bond, look into the eyes of this woman and tell me 

again the reason you are here.’
Bond looked into her eyes and repeated what he had said 

earlier. Did the woman know that he was not telling the whole 
truth? If she did, would she speak for him or against him?

For a moment there was silence. She looked at Mr Big.
‘He speaks the truth,’ she said coldly.
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Death on the Stairs

Mr Big thought for a moment, then pushed a button on the 
intercom on his desk.

‘Blabbermouth? You’re holding the American, Leiter,’ he 
said. ‘Hurt him, then take him to Bellevue Hospital and leave 
him outside. Don’t let anyone see you.’

‘Yes, Sir, Boss,’ came the reply.
‘Damn you49!’ said Bond.
Mr Big looked at Bond, then at Tee-Hee. ‘Tee-Hee, break 

the little finger of Mr Bond’s left hand.’
Tee-Hee laughed and walked across to Bond.
Bond held on tightly to the arms of his chair. He started to 

sweat50 and tried to imagine the pain so that he could control 
it. Tee-Hee took hold of the little finger of Bond’s left hand 
and started to bend it back. T he sweat poured off Bond’s face 
as he fought the pain.

Suddenly there was a terrible crack! as the finger broke
-  and Bond fainted51.

Solitaire closed her eyes.
‘Did he have a gun?’ asked Mr Big.
‘Yes, Sir, Boss,’ said Tee-Hee. He took the Beretta from his 

pocket and put it on the desk. Mr Big picked it up and emptied 
the bullets52 onto his desk. T hen he pushed the gun towards 
its owner.

‘Wake him up,’ he said. He looked at his watch. It said 
three o’clock.

Tee-Hee pushed his fingernails into Bond’s neck. Bond’s 
eyes opened and he lifted his head. He looked at Mr Big and 
swore53 at him.
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‘Be glad that you’re not dead,’ Mr Big told him. ‘Tee-Hee, 
give him his gun. I have the bullets.’

Tee-Hee took it off the desk and put the Beretta into Bond’s 
shoulder holster.

‘So, why are you still alive, Mr Bond?’ said Mr Big. ‘W hy 
aren’t you at the bottom of the Harlem River? I’ll tell you. 
Because it would be a nuisance34 for me to have a lot of people 
asking questions about the disappearance of yourself and Mr 
Leiter. I have more important things to worry me at this time.’ 
He looked at his watch. ‘So you must leave the country today, 
and Mr Leiter must move on to another job. If I see you again, 
you’ll die. Tee-Hee, take Mr Bond to the garage. Tell two men 
to take him to Central Park and leave him there.’

Tee-Hee took the belts from Bond’s wrists and legs. Next 
he took Bond’s injured55 left hand and pushed it up behind his 
back. Then  he took off the belt around Bond’s body and pulled 
him to his feet.

Solitaire was staring at her hands. She did not look up. 
Tee-Hee pushed Bond forward towards a bookcase. He 

reached across and put a hand on one of the books, and a 
large part of the bookcase opened like a door. He pushed Bond 
through and closed the bookcase behind him.

They walked down a short corridor towards some stairs. 
W hen they were near the top of the stairs, Bond stopped 
suddenly. Tee-Hee’s body fell against him, and Bond quickly 
turned and used his right hand to hit the other man hard in 
the stomach. Tee-Hee screamed and dropped Bond’s left arm. 
Bond pulled his empty gun from its holster and hit Tee-Hee 
across the head. He fell onto his knees, and Bond kicked him 
with his steel-capped56 shoe. Tee-Hee screamed again as he fell 
down the stairs.

Bond wiped the sweat from his face and listened. He 
pushed his left hand into his coat. T he pain was terrible and
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the hand was twice its usual size. Holding his gun in his right 
hand, he walked slowly and quietly down the stairs.

A t the bottom, Tee-Hee was lying on his back. He was 
either dead or dying from a broken neck. Bond checked the 
body for a gun and found a C olt .38 Detective Special. He took 
it and put his Beretta back in his shoulder holster. There was a 
small door in front of him. He put his ear against it and heard 
the sound of an engine. It had to be the garage where they 
were waiting for him and Tee-Hee.

Bond pushed the door open with a crash. A  black car with 
its engine running was waiting. He saw two black men, one 
sitting in the driver’s seat of the car and the other standing 
next to the passenger door. There were several other cars, but 
nobody else.

Bond shot the man near the passenger door in the stomach, 
then quickly turned towards the driver of the car. T he man 
screamed and Bond shot him through the head.

Bond ran round the car and opened the door. T he driver’s 
body fell towards him and he pulled it out onto the ground. He 
climbed into the driver’s seat and shut the door.

There was a shot as he drove out of the garage. The bullet 
hit the side of the car. Bond guessed that the first man was still 
alive and had managed to reach his gun.

Outside the garage, the street was dark and empty. A t the 
end of the street, Bond came to some red traffic lights. He drove 
through them. There were several more dark streets before he 
came to an avenue with street lights. There was traffic now. 
Further on, he checked the street signs and saw that he was on 
the corner of Park Avenue and 116th Street. He slowed again at 
the next street. It was 115th. He was going away from Harlem 
and back into the city.

He turned into 60th Street, stopped the car and got out. He 
took the gun off the passenger seat and pushed it into his belt,
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then he walked back to Park Avenue. A  few minutes later, he 
stopped a taxi.

Back at the S t Regis Hotel, the man at the desk had a 
message for him. Bond opened the envelope with his right 
hand. It was from Felix, sent at 4 am. ‘Call me at once,’ it 
said.

33



^8_

A Strange Report to M

In his hotel room, Bond poured himself a whisky and then 
used the telephone.
Leiter answered at once.
‘Thank God, you’re alive!’ he said. ‘Are you hurt?’
‘Broken finger,’ said Bond. ‘W hat about you?’
‘Nothing serious. Blabbermouth and I got quite friendly.

1 got him talking about movies and music until instructions 
came from Mr Big. Then  he said “Sorry, mister,” knocked me 
out57 and took me to Bellevue Hospital. He left me outside. I 
went to the Emergency Room where they looked at my head, 
then I came home. I got telephone calls from the police and 
the FBI. Mr Big had complained that a crazy Englishman had 
shot three of his men early this morning -  a waiter at The 
Boneyard and two drivers — and had stolen one of his cars.

‘Mr Big wants the police to do something about it, but I 
talked to them and the FBI. They’re not going to chase after 
us. But they’re very angry, and we’ve both got to get out of New 
York at once. Also, Mr Big will be coming after you, James. 
Now, tell me exactly what happened to you.’

Bond told his story.
W hen he had finished, Leiter said, ‘T hat Solitaire lady 

certainly seems to be your friend. We need to make plans. 
Listen, I’ll phone you again in a few minutes. First I’ll get the 
police doctor to come and see you. W hile you’re waiting, you’d 
better call your boss in London.’

Ten minutes later, Bond was speaking to M. He chose his 
words carefully. He knew that someone might be listening to 
the conversation. ‘It’s James, Sir,’ he said. ‘I may need a bit of 
help. I went across town to see our main customer last night.
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Three of his best men became sick while I was there.’
‘How sick?’ asked M.
‘As sick as a person can be,’ answered Bond.
‘Did you get ... sick?’
‘Only a little, Sir,’ said Bond. ‘But Federated thinks I’ll 

feel better away from town.’ Bond smiled. M would know that 
‘Federated’ was the FBI. ‘So Felicia and I are going soon.’ 

‘W ho?’ asked M.
‘Felicia.’ Bond spelt the name. ‘You know, my new secretary 

from W ashington.’
‘Oh, yes,’ said M.
‘I thought I’d try that factory at San Pedro,’ said Bond. ‘But 

Federated may have other ideas. I hope you can help me.’
‘Yes, of course,’ replied M. ‘Anything else?’
‘No, that’s all, Sir,’ said Bond. ‘Thank you.’
Bond put down the telephone and grinned58. He could 

imagine M explaining the news to the C hief of Staff. ‘007 ’s 
already upset the FBI,’ he would say. ‘The fool went up to 
Harlem and killed three of Mr Big’s men. He got hurt himself, 
but only a little. He’s got to get out of New York with Leiter, the 
C IA  man. They’re going down to S t Petersburg. Washington 
will be complaining to us in a minute. Apologize and tell them 
that it won’t happen again.’

Bond’s telephone rang. It was Leiter again.
‘Everyone’s calmer now,’ he told Bond. ‘The three men you 

killed were Tee-Hee Johnson, Sam Miami and a man called 
M cThing. T he police wanted all of them for different crimes. 
The FBI wants you to be sent home, so we’d better get out 
of town quickly. W e can’t go together, so you’re going on the 
train and I’ll fly. W rite this down.’

Bond reached for some paper and a pencil.
‘Pennsylvania Station, Track 14,’ Leiter told him. ‘Ten 

thirty this morning, The Silver Phantom. It goes to S t Petersburg 
through Washington, Jacksonville and Tampa. Pullman Car
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245, Compartment H. T he ticket will be on the train in the 
name of Bryce. The conductor59 will have it. Go straight to 
your compartment and lock yourself inside until the train starts 
moving. T he train gets to S t  Petersburg at midday tomorrow. 
G et a cab to T he Everglades Canabas, Gulf Boulevard West, 
on Sunset Beach. T h at’s on Treasure Island, where all the 
beach hotels are. It’s an island joined to S t Petersburg by a 
causeway60. Be careful. Mr Big will be looking for you. Any 
questions?’

‘It sounds fine,’ said Bond. ‘Look after yourself, Felix. See 
you tomorrow.’

T he police doctor came and stayed for a painful fifteen 
minutes. W hen he had gone, Bond was thinking of ordering 
breakfast when the phone rang. He picked it up. A  woman’s 
voice asked for Mr Bond.

‘W ho’s calling?’ asked Bond. He knew the answer.
‘I know it’s you,’ said the voice. ‘This is Solitaire. Listen, 

I’ve got to be quick. You must trust me. I’ve got to get away, 
and so must you. You’ve got to take me. I can help you -  I 
know a lot of his secrets. But be quick. If he finds out I called 
you, he’ll kill me. Please, you must trust m e!’

Bond said nothing for a moment. He was thinking fast. 
T hen he said, ‘OK, write this down. Be at Pennsylvania Station 
at ten twenty exactly. The Silver Phantom  to . ..  to Washington. 
Pullman Car 245, Compartment H. Say that you’re Mrs Bryce. 
T he conductor will have the ticket if I’m not already there. Go 
straight to the compartment and wait for me.’

‘Thank you, thank you!’ said Solitaire. ‘Now I must go.’ 
Bond put down the telephone. ‘T hat’s going to make things 

interesting,’ he said to himself, smiling.

A t the big switchboard in Harlem, T he Whisper was giving 
Bond’s description to all spies. ‘W atch the hotel. W atch all 
the airports, all the train stations . . . ’
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The Silver Phantom

Bond left the hotel through a back door and got a taxi to 
Pennsylvania Station. O ne of Mr Big’s spies saw him when 

he got out of the taxi. T he man hurried to a telephone. Some 
minutes later, a waiter in the train’s dining car was replaced 
by another man. This man had been given full and careful
instructions on the telephone.

The Silver Phantom  was a long train of silver carriages. It 
stood quietly in the half-light of the underground station. 
There were not many passengers. More would get on at 
Newark, Philadelphia, Baltimore and Washington. Pullman 
Car 245 was near the back of the train. A  porter stood at the 
door. His black face was bored but friendly.

‘Compartment H ,’ said Bond.
‘Mr Bryce?’ said the porter. ‘Mrs Bryce has just arrived. G o

to the end of the carriage.’
Bond stepped onto the train. A  notice said: ‘If you need 

anything, ring for your Pullman Porter, Samuel D. Baldwin.’ 
Compartment H was more than halfway down the carriage. 

There was an American couple in Compartment E, but all the 
other rooms were empty. T he door of Compartment H was
locked. Bond knocked.

‘W ho’s that?’ asked a woman’s voice nervously.
‘It’s me,’ said Bond.
The door opened. Bond walked through and locked the

door behind him.
Solitaire wore a black suit and her eyes were wide with fear.

She looked beautiful.
‘Thank God,’ she said.
Bond looked round the room. T h en  he opened the
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bathroom door and looked in. It was empty. Moments later, 
the train began to move. He sat down on a seat with his back 
to the engine. Solitaire sat down opposite him , and he saw 
the dark skin under her eyes. ‘She hasn’t slept either,’ thought 
Bond.

‘Thank you for trusting me,’ she said.
‘I’m glad I did,’ said Bond. He was trying to open a new 

pack of cigarettes with his right hand. She reached over, took 
the pack and opened it for him. ‘You’re going to be busy,’ he 
said, smiling. ‘I smoke three packs a day.’

‘I’ll just help with the new packs until we get to S t 
Petersburg,’ she said.

Bond’s smile disappeared and his eyes narrowed.
‘W hat’s wrong?’ she said. ‘Oh, I knew we were going further 

than Washington. Mr Big was certain you’d travel to Florida. 
I heard him warning his people down there about you. He 
spoke to a man called “T he Robber”. He told him to watch the 
airport at Tampa and the trains. Perhaps we should get off the 
train earlier, at one of the small stations up the coast. Did they 
see you get on the train?’

‘I don’t think so,’ said Bond. He was calm again. ‘Did you 
have any trouble getting away?’

‘It was my day for a singing lesson,’ she said. ‘Mr Big wants 
me to be a singer at The Boneyard. O ne of his men took me 
to my teacher and he’ll be there to collect me at midday.’ She 
looked at her watch. ‘They’ll be looking for me in about an 
hour. I waited until the car had gone, then telephoned you. 
N ext I got a cab and went into the city. I bought a toothbrush 
and a few other things. A ll I ’ve got with me is my jewellery 
and about five thousand dollars of my own money.’ She looked 
out of the window. ‘I ’ve been locked up with Mr Big and his 
gangsters for such a long time. It feels wonderful to be away 
from them .’

‘You saved my life last night. Are you really telepathic?’
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‘Yes,’ she said. ‘I can often see what’s going to happen, 
especially to other people. In H aiti I did it for entertainment, 
and I was paid.’ She smiled at him. ‘W hen I first saw you, I 
knew you were going to help me. But it’s going to be difficult. 
And dangerous.’

He looked at her for several moments.
‘I can tell you want to know more about me,’ she said, ‘but 

there’s nothing very bad to know. My real name is Simone 
Latrelle and I’m twenty-five years old. I’ll tell you all about me 
when we have time, but I want to forget about the past. And 
now I’m happy, but I’m hungry and very sleepy. W hich  bed will 
you have?’

‘I think I’d better have the bottom  one,’ replied Bond. 
Lunch arrived, brought by a black waiter. He seemed to be 

in a hurry to be paid and get back to his work.
W hen they had finished eating, Bond rang for the train 

attendant and the man started to get their beds ready. He 
seemed worried about something and he pretended to find it 
difficult to move around in the small compartment. A t last 
he said, ‘Perhaps Mrs Bryce would like to go to the next room 
while I finish this. It’s empty all the way to S t Petersburg.’ He 
unlocked the inside door to the next compartment without 
waiting for an answer.

Bond nodded to Solitaire, and she went through the 
door. Bond remembered the porter’s name and said, ‘Is there 
something you want to tell me, Baldwin?’

‘Yes, Sir, Mr Bryce,’ said the attendant nervously. ‘You’ve 
got an enemy on this train. I ’ve heard things I don’t like. 
There’s a man who’s very interested in you, and he’s a bad man. 
Very bad. You need to be careful.’ He took two small pieces 
of wood from his pocket. ‘Push these under the doors to stop 
them opening.’

‘But . . . ’ Bond began.
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‘C an’t help you any more, Sir,’ said Baldwin. ‘I ’ll bring your 
dinner later. Don’t let anybody else into the room.’ He went 
out quickly.

Bond opened the inside door. ‘H e’s finished,’ he told 
Solitaire. She came back into the compartment and climbed 
up onto the top bed.

T h e room was almost in darkness, with just a small light on 
by the bottom bed. Bond pushed the pieces of wood carefully 
under both doors. T h en  he took his coat off, lay down on his 
bed and went to sleep.

A  few carriages away, a black waiter was waiting for the ten- 
minute stop at Philadelphia. He had a message that he needed 
to send.



10

A Visitor in the Night

The train travelled on through the bright afternoon. They 
left Pennsylvania behind, and Maryland. They stopped 

at Washington, then went on into Virginia. Bond woke up at 
seven o’clock. They had dinner, and at nine o’clock Baldwin 
саше to take the dishes away.

‘W hat time do we get into Jacksonville?’ Bond asked him.
‘About five o’clock in the morning, Sir,’ said Baldwin.
‘Is there a subway61 at the station?’ asked Bond.
‘Yes, Sir, this carriage stops next to it,’ replied Baldwin.
‘Can you have the door open and the steps down quickly?’ 

said Bond.
Baldwin smiled. ‘Yes, Sir. I can do that,’ he said.
Bond gave him ten dollars.
After the attendant had left, Bond put the pieces of wood 

back under the doors. He told Solitaire of the warning Baldwin 
had given him earlier.

‘I’m not surprised,’ she said. ‘They probably saw you coming 
into the station. Mr Big’s got a team of spies everywhere. There 
will be one of them on the train. A n attendant or a waiter, or 
someone else in the dining car. He can make these people do 
anything he wants them to do.’

‘Is it true that he’s a member of SM ERSH , the Russian spy 
organization?’ asked Bond.

‘I don’t know what SM ERSH  is,’ said Solitaire, ‘but I know 
he works for Russia. I’ve heard him talking to Russian visitors. 
And if Moscow is using him, they are using one of the most 
powerful men in America. He can find out anything. And if he 
doesn’t get what he wants, somebody is usually killed.’

‘So  I’ve heard,’ said Bond. He looked at his watch. It was
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ten o’clock. ‘We need to get as much sleep as we can,’ he said. 
‘W e’ll get off the train at Jacksonville and find another way 
down to the coast. Maybe his spies won’t see us.’

Suddenly, Solitaire put her arms around his neck and kissed 
him. ‘I always hoped that I would meet someone like you,’ she 
said quietly.

Bond smiled at her. ‘I think we need to get some sleep. 
W e’ll have to wake up at four o’clock,’ he said. Then  he 
quietly pulled the piece of wood away from under the door 
that opened into the next compartment. He turned the lock. 
He took the Beretta out of its holster, then looked at Solitaire 
and nodded his head towards the door. She understood and 
opened it quickly. The next compartment was empty.

‘C all me when you’re ready for bed,’ he said, and he went in 
and closed the door behind him.

T he door to the corridor was locked. T he compartment was 
the same as theirs, but Bond checked it carefully. If anyone 
came in, it would be through the doors. He would just have to 
stay awake.

Solitaire called for him. W hen he went back into their 
compartment, she was already lying down in the top bed.

‘Try and get some sleep,’ said Bond. He checked the pieces 
of wood under the doors, then took off his tie and lay down on 
the bottom bed. He lay thinking about Solitaire and listening 
to the sound of the train. Soon it was eleven o ’clock, and they 
were travelling between Columbia and Savannah, Georgia. It 
would be another six hours before they were in Jacksonville. 
Mr Big had probably told his man on the train to try to kill 
Bond during the night, while everyone was asleep and the 
corridors were empty.

Bond read for a while, then turned off his light and thought 
about Solitaire and the future. He was half asleep when he 
heard someone trying to unlock the door of their compartment. 
It was one o’clock. Moving silently, he went to the inside door
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and pulled the piece of wood from under it. He opened the 
door and went into the next compartment. There was a loud 
click ! as he unlocked the door to the corridor. He quickly pulled 
it open and jumped into the corridor.

Bond saw a man running fast towards the end of the 
carriage, but he could not get his gun out quickly enough to 
shoot. Because of his painful hand, he had had to push his 
Beretta into his belt to open the compartment door.

T he man had gone and Bond did not chase him. There 
were too many empty compartments for the man to hide in. 
He went back into the room, carefully closing and locking the 
doors. He lay down again and waited for the night to end.
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It was five o’clock in the morning when Bond and Solitaire 
got off the train at Jacksonville. It was still dark and there 

were very few lights on in the station. The entrance to the 
subway was near Car 245, and there was nobody around when 
they ran down the steps. Bond had told Baldwin to keep the 
door of their compartment locked after they had left. W ith 
luck, no one would know they had gone until the train reached 
St Petersburg.

Bond checked and found that the next train to S t Petersburg 
was The Silver Meteor. It would leave Jacksonville at nine 
o’clock that morning.

He and Solitaire walked out into the warm, dark street and 
found an all-night restaurant. They had breakfast and talked. 
Solitaire told Bond that she had been living in an apartment 
in Mr Big’s Harlem apartment building.

‘I’ve been like a prisoner there for the last two years,’ she 
said. ‘Two women live in the apartment with me, and he never 
lets me go out without a guard. Sometimes I have to go to the 
room where I saw you and tell him if someone is lying to him. 
If they are, he usually kills them .’

Bond listened carefully. Every detail she told him added to 
the picture of a very powerful and cruel man, with a huge team 
of people working for him.

‘Do you know anything about the gold coins?’ he asked.
‘I’ve had to ask men how many they’ve sold and the price 

they’ve got for them ,’ she said. ‘Very often, they lie about 
both.’

Bond was careful to say very little of what he knew or 
guessed. He had strong feelings for Solitaire, but Bond was
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there to do his job, and his feelings for her would not change 
that.

The Silver M eteor arrived at nine o’clock and took them 
down through Florida. They had lunch, then left the train at 
Clearwater, which was the last station before S t  Petersburg. 
Bond stopped a taxi and gave the driver the address on Treasure 
Island. It was two o’clock, and the hot sun burnt down out of 
a blue sky.

T he taxi stopped in traffic just before the long Treasure 
Island causeway across the waters of Boca Ciega Bay. A  large 
man was driving a taxi next to them. W hen he saw Solitaire, 
his mouth fell open in surprise. He stopped the taxi soon after 
and ran to a public telephone.

‘Let me talk to The Robber,’ he said a few moments later. 
‘Robber? Listen, Mr Big must be in town. I just saw his girl 
in a Clearwater cab ...  W hat? You just talked to him in New 
York?... Well, it was her. She was with a man in a blue s u it ... 
Follow him? OK, I’ll stop their cab when it comes back across 
the causeway ... OK, O K !’

Five minutes later, the man called The Robber was speaking 
to Mr Big in New York. He had been warned about Bond, but 
Solitaire was a surprise. He listened to the instructions from 
Mr Big, then thought for a moment. Ten thousand dollars 
to do the job. He would need two men, so that would leave 
eight thousand dollars for him. He smiled, then picked up the 
telephone again.

Bond and Solitaire got out of the taxi at a group of small white - 
and-yellow beach houses called T he Everglades. These were 
on three sides of a square of grass which went down to a beach 
and the sea.

The two of them went through a door with the word ‘Office’ 
on it. T he woman behind the desk had blue-grey hair. She 
smiled. ‘Yes?’
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‘Mr Leiter?’ said Bond.
‘O h, yes,’ she said. ‘You’re Mr Bryce. I’ll show you to your 

cottage62 -  number one, right down by the sea. Mr Leiter’s been 
waiting for you.’ She looked at Solitaire.

‘This is Mrs Bryce,’ said Bond.
‘O h ,’ said the woman. ‘I’m Mrs Stuyvesant.’
She took them down a path to a cottage and knocked on 

the door. Leiter opened it. His mouth fell open in surprise 
when he saw Bond.

T h is  is my wife,’ Bond said quickly.
‘O h -  yes, hello,’ said Leiter.
He almost pulled the two of them into the cottage, then 

shut the door before Mrs Stuyvesant could speak.
A  small living room looked across the beach to the sea. It 

had comfortable beach chairs and a large table with a glass top. 
There was a white telephone and some flowers on the table.

Bond and Solitaire sat down and Bond lit a cigarette. He put 
the pack on the table. Leiter was still staring at them, his eyes 
wide with surprise, unable to speak. Suddenly, the telephone 
rang and Leiter picked it up.

‘Is that you, Lieutenant?’ he said. ‘Yes . ..  He’s here. He’s 
just arrived.’ He listened for a moment, then turned to Bond. 
‘W here did you leave the train?’ Bond told him. ‘Jacksonville,’ 
Leiter said into the phone. ‘Yes, I’ll get the information from 
him and phone you later.’

He put down the telephone and sat down opposite Bond. 
He looked at Solitaire. ‘I guess you’re Solitaire,’ he said, and 
smiled at her.

‘She’s working with us now,’ Bond told him.
‘T h at’s great,’ said Leiter. ‘W ell, you won’t have seen the 

newspapers or heard the radio, so I’ll tell you. The Phantom  
was stopped soon after Jacksonville. Your compartment was 
bombed, and the bomb killed the train attendant. He was 
outside in the corridor. T he police started asking questions

I
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immediately. “W ho did it? W ho are Mr and Mrs Bryce? W here 
are they?” O f course, we thought you’d been kidnapped63. Then 
the police found out that your tickets had been bought in New 
York by the FBI, and after that everyone wanted answers from 
m e.’ He reached across for one of Bond’s cigarettes. ‘Now tell 
me your story.’

Bond told him.
‘Did anyone see you when you left the train at Jacksonville?’ 

asked Leiter.
‘I don’t think so,’ said Bond. ‘But we’d better keep Solitaire 

here until we can get her safely away. W e’ll put her on a flight 
to Jamaica tomorrow. I can get someone to look after her there 
until we com e.’

‘O K ,’ said Leiter. ‘W e’ll get a ticket for her to fly to Miami 
tomorrow. From there she can fly to Jamaica. She should arrive 
in Jamaica by tomorrow evening.’

‘Is that OK, Solitaire?’ asked Bond.
Solitaire was staring out of the window. ‘Yes,’ she said 

nervously. ‘Yes, I . . .  suppose that’s all right.’
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Solitaire stood up. ‘I’ll take my things to the bedroom,’ she 
said. ‘I expect you two have a lot to talk about.’

‘You can have James’s room,’ said Leiter. ‘He can share my 
room.’

He took her to the bedroom, then went into the kitchen 
and came back with a bottle of whisky and two glasses. W hen 
the two men were holding their drinks, Leiter began to talk 
about the train.

‘It left Jacksonville about five o’clock,’ he said. ‘It got to 
Waldo at about six, and the bomb exploded soon after it left. 
Here’s what I think happened .. .  Just after the train leaves 
Waldo, Mr Big’s man gets into the compartment next to yours. 
He puts some sort of sign in the window -  a message to show 
that your compartment is to the right of it. Maybe a towel 
or something like that. About twenty minutes after leaving 
Waldo, the train driver gets an emergency signal64 to stop the 
train.

‘There’s a grey Buick car waiting on the road that runs next 
to the train track. The train driver sees three black men get out. 
Two are carrying guns and the other man has something in his 
hand. They walk along the train and stop outside Car 245. The 
two men with guns shoot out the glass in your compartment 
window. The other man throws in the bomb, then all three 
run back to the Buick. They drive away -  fast. The bomb goes 
boom! End of James Bond. Except that it’s not.’

‘W ell, that’s the third time I’ve escaped dying since I 
arrived in New York,’ said Bond.

‘Mr Big won’t like that at all. He doesn’t usually make 
mistakes,’ said Leiter.

12
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‘Tell me, what more do you know about the gold coins?’ 
asked Bond.

‘They definitely get into the U SA  through St Petersburg,’ 
said Leiter. ‘T he Secatur comes straight from Jam aica and 
always stops at that factory. W hat’s it called?’

‘Ourobouros,’ said Bond.
‘Let’s go and see the place,’ said Leiter. ‘The Secatur is in 

Cuba now. It left S t Petersburg a week ago. They searched 
the yacht when it came in and when it left, but didn’t find 
anything, of course. No gold coins. But let’s go and see if we 
can have a look at Mr Big’s Robber. Go and tell Solitaire to 
stay here until we get back, then we’ll take her out to dinner.’ 

But Solitaire did not want to be left alone. ‘I want to get 
away from here,’ she told him with fear in her eyes. Bond kissed 
her. ‘It’s all right,’ he said. ‘W e’ll be back in an hour. Nothing 
can happen to you here. T hen I won’t leave you until you’re 
on the plane.’

Leiter had a car waiting outside. Minutes later, Bond was 
driving the car across the causeway from Treasure Island to the 
city of S t  Petersburg.

W hen they came to the city’s waterfront65, Leiter said, ‘W e’d 
better get out and walk. The Robber’s place is near here.’

They left the car and walked to a narrow street which 
ended at a small wooden jetty that reached out twenty feet 
into the sea. N ext to the open gate of the jetty was a long, low 
warehouse. Painted on the wide door were the words: 

O U RO BO U RO S W ORM  A N D  B A IT  SHIPPERS 
CO RA L, SH ELLS, T R O P IC A L FISH  
Inside the big door, there was a smaller door with a lock on 

it. The sign on this smaller door said: PRIVATE. K EEP O U T.
T he Robber was sitting in a chair outside the small door. 

He was cleaning a gun -  a Remington .30 rifle, Bond thought. 
He was about forty years old, with a thin, dark face. He looked 
cruel and cold, like the bad man in a crime film.
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Bond and Leiter walked past him and onto the jetty. He 
did not look up, but Bond could feel the man’s eyes following 
them. They watched a large grey bird -  a pelican -  flying above 
the water. Suddenly, it flew down into the water and came back 
up holding a fish. Moments later, it flew slowly back, landed on 
the jetty and swallowed the fish.

Bond and Leiter turned around and walked back to The 
Robber. He was still cleaning the rifle.

‘Good afternoon,’ said Leiter. ‘Are you the manager here?’ 
‘Yeah,’ said the man, without looking up.
‘Could we leave our boat here?’ asked Leiter. ‘It’s too 

crowded everywhere else.’
‘N o,’ said the man.
Leiter took a twenty dollar bill from his pocket and held it 

out to T he Robber. ‘Would this help to change your mind?’ 
‘N o,’ said The Robber. Then, after a moment, he asked, 

‘W hat’s the name of your boat?’
‘T he Sybil,’ said Leiter.
The Robber stared at them. Then  he moved the rifle across 

the front of both Bond and Leiter. They did not move. The 
Robber pointed the rifle down the jetty, narrowed his eyes and 
pulled the trigger66. T he pelican made a small noise, and they 
heard its heavy body fall into the water.

‘W hy did you do that?’ asked Bond angrily.
‘Practice,’ said The Robber, putting another bullet into the 

rifle. He stared at them. ‘You’ve got guns, I can smell them.’ He 
moved the rifle so that it pointed at Leiter’s stomach, then he 
got up and opened the door behind him. ‘Come around here 
again and I’ll shoot you, just like the bird. I’ve had enough of 
cops67 like you looking around and asking questions.’

He went into the warehouse and closed the door with a 
crash behind him.

Bond and Leiter looked at each other.
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‘So we won’t be going in the front door,’ said Bond, smiling. 
‘But every warehouse has more than one door.’

‘W e’ll check that on our next visit,’ said Leiter. ‘W e’d better 
get back to Solitaire.’

They drove back to T he Everglades, where they found Mrs 
Stuyvesant waiting outside. She saw them get out of the car 
and hurried towards them.

‘There was a large wooden box delivered to your cottage, 
Mr Leiter,’ she said. ‘Very large. T he two men who brought it 
had trouble getting it through the door. I hope

Her mouth fell open in surprise as Bond and Leiter turned 
and ran towards the cottage.

-
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Solitaire was not in the cottage and the lock of her room had 
been broken. Bond swore angrily to himself. He should not 

have left her alone. T he two men had probably been carrying 
guns. Bond imagined the fear Solitaire must have felt as they 
put her in the wooden box. But how had Mr Big found her so 
fast? It was just another example of the fact that Mr Big’s spies 
were everywhere.

Leiter was speaking to the FBI on the telephone. W hen 
he put the phone down, he said, ‘They’re sending two of their 
men here. I ’ll talk to Washington and New York.’

Bond went back into Solitaire’s room. Her things were still 
there, and he found her bag under the bed. He looked inside 
it and found the five thousand dollars. Bond put them into his 
pocket. T he money would be safe with him.

It was eight o’clock when the FBI men finished their search 
for clues68 and left. Bond and Leiter went out and had dinner 
and some drinks, then went back to their cottage. Much later, 
after more drinks, they went to bed.

Bond slept in Solitaire’s room and woke up at eight o’clock 
the next day. He had a quick shower and went into Leiter’s 
room. Leiter was not there but there was a note by the door.

It’s five o ’clock. I ’m  going to visit the worm and bait 
warehouse. It’s strange that The Robber was sitting there 
with his rifle while Solitaire was being kidnapped. M aybe he 
knew we were in town and was ready for trouble if things 
went wrong. I f  I ’m  not back by ten, call the FBI on Tampa 
88 .

Felix
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Bond did not wait. He telephoned for a taxi. He got dressed 
and was just about to leave to go to the warehouse when the 
telephone rang. He picked it up.

‘Mr Bryce? This is Mound Park Hospital speaking,’ said a 
voice. ‘Doctor Roberts here. We have a Mr Leiter here who is 
asking for you.’

‘W hat happened?’ asked Bond, full of fear. ‘Is he all right?’ 
‘A  car accident, but it’s not too serious,’ said the voice. 

‘Can you come now?’
Bond’s taxi arrived and minutes later he was crossing the 

Treasure Island Causeway. A n ambulance went past them. 
‘More trouble,’ thought Bond.

A  pretty nurse sat at the hospital desk. ‘Yes?’ she said. 
‘Doctor Roberts called me,’ said Bond. ‘I’m looking for a 

patient69 called Felix Leiter. He was brought in this morning.’ 
‘There’s no doctor called Roberts here,’ said the nurse. 

She looked down at a list on the desk. ‘And there’s no patient 
called Leiter. Are you sure you’re at the right hospital?’

Bond stared at her, trying to keep calm. Then  he turned 
away without answering.

Luckily, there was a taxi outside. Bond told the driver to 
take him back to The Everglades as fast as possible. W hen they 
arrived, Mrs Stuyvesant hurried out to meet him.

‘A n ambulance came just after you left,’ she told Bond. 
‘The men said that Mr Leiter had been in a car accident. They 
had to carry him into the cottage, and his face was covered 
with bandages70.’

Bond did not wait to hear more. He ran to the cottage and 
straight into Leiter’s bedroom. There was the shape of a body 
on Leiter’s bed, covered with a sheet. Bond pulled the sheet 
away from the face. But there was no face, only something 
covered tightly in dirty bandages.

He pulled the sheet down further. There were more 
bandages, then a large bag covered in blood which was holding
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the bottom half of the body. There was a small hole in the 
bandages where the person’s mouth should have been. Bond 
moved his face nearer to the bandages. There was a whisper of 
breath against his cheek.

He picked up the telephone by the bed and called Tampa 
88. It took several minutes to make them understand what he 
was telling them.

Bond took off some of the bandages round the top of the 
head. T he hair was wet. Bond touched it, then put his finger to 
his mouth. It tasted of salt. He looked more closely at the hair
-  and then he knew for sure. It was Felix.

A  police doctor and two detectives arrived, and Bond told 
them everything that he knew. After some time, the police 
doctor came out from the bedroom. ‘I think he’ll live,’ he told 
Bond. ‘But one arm is gone, and half of the left leg. I don’t 
know what did it. A n animal? Maybe a shark?’

There was a telephone call from an FBI lieutenant. He had 
been sent to The Robber’s place after Bond’s earlier phone call. 
T he Robber and two other men had been questioned for an 
hour. A ll three had alibis71 for that morning, and there was 
nothing at the warehouse except tanks72 of fish, bait and cases 
of coral and shells. Leiter’s car had been found on the other 
side of the harbour73.

Soon after, the police ambulance arrived and left with 
Leiter and the police doctor. T he two detectives also left. The 
telephone rang, and it was Leiter’s C IA  boss. He asked Bond 
to move on to Jamaica as soon as possible.

‘I think there’s a flight tomorrow,’ said Bond. ‘I’ll be on it. 
Any other news?’

‘Oh, yes,’ said the man. ‘Mr Big and his girlfriend, Solitaire, 
left for Havana, Cuba, during the night. They left from a small 
airfield on a private plane. T h at’s how we missed them. Our 
man in Cuba reported their arrival. The Secatur is still there, 
too.’
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After the call, Bond thought for several minutes, then 
found the telephone book. After a minute, he picked up the 
telephone and spoke to a man at the Eastern Garden Aquarium. 
‘W here could I buy a live shark?’ he asked.

‘The only place I know is Ourobouros Worm and Bait,’ 
came the answer. ‘They’ve got sharks. Big ones. W hite, tiger, 
even hammerhead sharks.’

Bond thanked him. Th en  he got out his gun and cleaned it, 
waiting for night to come.
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A t six o’clock, Bond paid his bill at T he Everglades and left.
\  Leiter’s car had been returned and Bond drove it into 

the town. He visited a shop and bought several things, then 
found a restaurant. After dinner, he drove to the harbour and 
parked the car near the sea.

It was a bright, moonlit night and he walked along by the 
low sea wall. T he wall was about three feet wide, and Bond 
climbed up and walked on top of it. W hen he got close to the 
warehouse, he jumped off the wall into the parking space at 
the back of the building.

Above his head, the roof and top part of the south wall of 
the warehouse were all made of glass. There were open windows 
up on the roof, but they were too high for Bond to reach. He 
started working with a glass-cutter that he had bought at the 
shop. W hile he was working, he looked through the glass into 
the huge, moonlit warehouse. He could see rows and rows 
of large glass tanks, and above them there was a long metal 
walkway. There were also shelves of shells and coral.

After a quarter of an hour’s careful work, Bond took out a 
large, square piece of the glass in front of him. He took off his 
shoes and pushed them inside his shirt. T h en  he pulled himself 
through the hole in the glass and dropped onto one of the 
shelves of shells. As quietly as he could, he made a space for his 
feet. A  moment later, he was down on the floor.

He left his shoes on the shelf, then moved across the floor 
with a small torch74 in his hand. He walked slowly past tank 
after tank of coloured fish. Underneath these were trays of live 
worms and bait.
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After a time, he found what he was looking for -  the 
poisonous75 fish. Here the tanks were smaller, and there was 
only one fish in each tank. There must have been hundreds of 
these tanks. O n the glass of each one was a sign saying VERY 
D A N G ER O U S  or D O N ’T  TO U C H .

He chose a tank which had a scorpion fish in it. Bond knew 
these did not attack, but they were poisonous when touched. 
He took out a pocket knife and opened the longest blade76. 
He pulled up his shirt sleeve and put his arm into the tank. 
He then pushed the knife blade quickly towards the centre of 
the fish’s head. The knife went through it and Bond carefully 
removed the fish from the tank. He dropped it onto the floor.

N ext, he put his hand into the sand at the bottom of the 
tank. His fingers touched rows of coins in a flat tray. He pulled 
out a coin and shone his torch on it. It was gold, and it was 
Spanish.

Bond thought for a moment. There had to be a thousand 
coins in that one tank. Several thousand dollars’ worth, 
guarded by one poisonous fish. The Secatur would carry about 
a hundred tanks -  well over one hundred and fifty thousand 
dollars’ worth of gold on each journey. Trucks would come for 
the tanks, and in another place, the fish would be taken out 
and thrown back into the sea or perhaps burnt. T he water and 
sand would be taken out and the gold coins washed and put 
into bags. Then  the bags would go to Mr Big’s men to be sold. 
A ll  very clever,’ thought Bond.

He dropped the scorpion fish back into the tank.
Suddenly, all the lights in the warehouse came on. A  voice 

said, ‘Don’t move! Put your hands in the air!’
Bond turned and threw himself under the tank. T he Robber 

was about twenty yards" away, pointing his rifle at him. There 
was a crack as The Robber fired a shot and the tank above 
Bond exploded like a bomb. W ater poured down, but Bond 
had rolled into the next passageway78. He quickly got up and
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ran. There was another shot and a second tank exploded near 
him.

He was now at the end of the warehouse where he had 
climbed in. T he Robber was at the other end, fifty yards away 
and he was shooting under the tanks at Bond’s legs. Bond fired 
two shots from his Beretta as he quickly crossed the central 
passageway. There was a crash of glass and water, a scream, and 
then T he Robber was shooting again.

As Bond passed a row of much smaller tanks, he pushed one 
of them onto the floor. It left a space on the table. He ran to get 
his shoes, then quickly ran back and jumped up onto the table. 
There was a moment’s silence as Bond hid on the table and put 
his shoes back on. T h en  The Robber shouted.

‘Come out, or I’ll bomb you out! Drop your gun on the floor 
and come down the central passageway with your hands up. I 
won’t shoot. W e’ll have a little talk.’

‘O K ,’ replied Bond, after a moment. ‘I don’t really have a 
choice.’ He dropped his Beretta on the floor. Then he took the 
gold coin from his pocket and held it tight in his injured left 
hand. He walked slowly along the central passageway with his 
hands up and stopped halfway up the passage.

The Robber came towards him. W hen he was a few 
yards from Bond, he stopped. ‘Put your hands up higher!’ he 
shouted.

Bond lifted his hands across his face. Between his fingers, he 
saw The Robber move something on the floor with his foot.

Suddenly, Bond guessed what had happened to Leiter, but 
there was no time to think about it now.

T he Robber moved nearer. A t that moment, Bond dropped 
the gold coin from his left hand. The Robber looked down, and 
Bond moved quickly. He reached out with his right foot and 
the steehcapped shoe almost kicked the rifle from the man’s 
hands. A t the same time, T he Robber fired the gun and the 
bullet went through the glass roof.

61



T he Robber

Bond threw himself at the man’s stomach. T he Robber 
began to fall backwards, and Bond kicked again with his steel- 
capped shoe. It h it T he Robber’s knee, and the man screamed 
with pain and dropped his rifle. As he fell to the ground, a 
large part of the floor moved and suddenly started to open. 
T he Robber almost disappeared down the black opening of a 
trapdoor79. He gave a scream of fear as his fingers caught the 
edge of the floor.

Bond looked down. Behind T he Robber’s terrified face he 
could see nothing but blackness. But he heard the sound of 
water and guessed that there was a way out to the sea, probably 
through narrow bars. And he could hear something moving 
down there. A  hammerhead or a tiger shark?

‘Pull me out!’ cried T he Robber. His eyes were wide with 
fear. ‘I ’ll tell you anything!’

‘W hat happened to Solitaire?’ asked Bond coldly.
‘Mr Big told me to arrange a kidnapping,’ said T he Robber. 

‘Two men in Tampa -  Butch and T he Lifer. They’ll be at The 
Oasis bar. Now will you pull me out?’

‘And the American, Leiter?’ asked Bond. ‘W hat happened 
to him?’

‘He called me early this morning. Told me to come here 
because the warehouse was on fire. W hen I got here, he said 
he wanted to search the place. He had a gun. He ...  he just fell 
through the trapdoor. It was an accident. We pulled him out 
before he was killed. H e’ll be O K .’

Bond looked over at the fingers holding the edge of the 
floor. He knew that The Robber must have got Leiter over the 
trapdoor, then opened it. He imagined T he Robber laughing 
at Felix’s half-eaten body.

Bond suddenly became very angry and he kicked the man 
as hard as he could in the back -  twice.

The Robber screamed as he fell. There was a big splash, and 
more screams as he was attacked by something in the water.
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Bond kicked the trapdoor shut and there was silence. He 
picked up the gold coin and his Beretta, turned off the lights 
and then walked out of the building.
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Bond drove towards Tampa and stopped at a bar for a drink. 
He used the washroom to clean himself. T he bandages 

on his left hand were dirty and his finger was very painful. He 
was very tired, but he got back into the car and drove towards 
the airport. He stopped at the first hotel that looked open and 
awake. It was two o’clock in the morning, and he went straight 
to bed.

He woke up at midday and walked down the road to a cafe 
for a sandwich and a cup of coffee. Then  he went back to his 
room and wrote a report for the FBI at Tampa. He said nothing 
in the report about the gold in the poisonous fish tanks -  this 
would be Bond’s secret. He did not want Mr Big to know he 
had seen the coins.

Later, he drove to the airport and left Leiter’s car outside for 
the FBI to collect. Before he got on the plane, he telephoned 
the hospital in S t Petersburg. Leiter was no better, but no 
worse.

Bond noticed an FBI agent watching him at the airport. He 
was certain that the agent was there to make sure that Bond 
got on the plane. They would be glad to see the last of him. 
W herever he had gone in America, he had left dead bodies.

T he plane for Jamaica left at five o’clock. T he sun was low 
in the sky as the plane flew round over Tampa Bay and then 
flew east. Soon they were over Miami. After an early dinner, 
the plane stopped at Nassau before flying on across Cuba and 
finally to Jamaica.

W hen Bond arrived at Palisadoes Airport, Strangways, the 
C hief Secret Service Agent for the Caribbean, was there to 
meet him. He was good-looking, thirty-five years old and wore
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a black patch80 over one eye. It was nearly eleven o’clock, and 
the night was quiet and hot. The two men spoke very little until 
they were sitting outside Strangways’s attractive white house. 
Then the Caribbean agent told Bond about the Jamaican part 
of the case.

‘There have always been stories about Bloody Morgan’s 
treasure on the Isle of Surprise,’ he explained. ‘It’s a small 
island in the centre of Shark Bay, where Morgan used to keep 
his ships. They say that when he left here for the last time 
in 1683, he hid his treasure somewhere in Jamaica. W hen he 
died, the secret of the treasure’s hiding place on the island died 
with him.

‘For two hundred years, treasure hunters81 found nothing. 
Then, six months ago, a New York company bought the island, 
and a few weeks later the Secatur came into Shark Bay. The 
men on the boat started to cut steps into the rocks up to the top 
of the island. Then they built several simple, small buildings 
there. They said that they had come to collect shells and catch 
tropical fish for the Ourobouros company. They bought large 
numbers of fish, shells and coral from the Shark Bay fishermen. 
T hen for a week there were explosions on the island, and the 
men on the boat told people that they were making a large fish 
tank in the ground.

‘T he Secatur visited every two weeks to collect the fish, 
shells and coral. Fishermen were warned to stay away from the 
island. O ne fisherman swam across there at night, planning to 
search for the treasure. He didn’t come back and his body was 
never found. After that, nobody went near the island again. 
They were too frightened.

‘It was about that time that I got interested,’ Strangways 
continued. ‘I sent a report to London and they discovered that 
the island belonged to Mr Big. This was about three months 
ago. I was told to find out what was really happening there, so 
I arranged for the island to be watched day and night. Nothing
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suspicious82 happened, so I got two good swimmers to make an 
underwater visit to the island. They didn’t return, and their 
bodies appeared in different parts of the bay the next day. 
O r what the sharks had left o f the bodies. Terrible. You can 
imagine how I felt about it.’

‘W here is the Secatur now?’ asked Bond.
‘In Cuba,’ said Strangways. ‘It will be here in a week, the 

C IA  tells me.’
‘How many journeys has the boat made?’ asked Bond.
A b ou t twenty,’ said Strangways.
Bond took a moment to think. So Mr Big had already taken 

around a million pounds in gold out of the islarld.
‘I’ve got you a house at Beau Desert. You can see the island 

from there,’ Strangways told Bond. ‘I ’ve got you a car and a 
good man to work with you. His name’s Quarrel and he’s the 
best fisherman and swimmer in the Caribbean. You should rest 
for a week, until the Secatur comes in, then you’re going to 
have to get onto the island. I ’ll be in Kingston, reporting to 
London and Washington. They’ll want to know everything we 
do. Is there anything else I can do for you?’

‘Yes . . . ’ said Bond. ‘I need a frogman suit83 with a compressed 
air bottle84, a good underwater harpoon85 gun and an 
underwater torch, and all the information you can get me 
about sharks. O h yes, and a limpet mine.’
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A fter breakfast the next morning, Strangways introduced
l  \  Quarrel to Bond.

‘Good morning, Captain,’ Quarrel said. He was a man of 
the sea, and ‘captain’ was the highest title he knew.

Bond liked him. After they had discussed their plans, the 
two men left in the little car Quarrel had brought with him. 
Strangways went to get the things that Bond needed for the 
job ahead.

By half past ten, they were travelling down the little road 
that went to Shark Bay. T h e bay was C-shaped, and in the 
centre was the Isle of Surprise. Quarrel pointed towards the 
little buildings on the top of the island. There were trees all 
around them, and Bond looked at them carefully through 
Quarrel’s binoculars86. He looked at the place in the bay where 
the Secatur would anchor87 when it arrived. T h en  Quarrel 
pointed to Beau Desert, in the middle of the western side of 
the ‘C ’.

‘T h at’s where we’ll work from,’ he said.
They drove back onto the main coast road and stopped for 

lunch on the other side of the wide bay. T h en  they drove to 
the western end of the island to the most beautiful beach Bond 
had ever seen. There was white sand reaching down to the 
sea and small fishermen’s cottages with palm trees88 all around 
them.

This was where they were going to stay for the week before 
going to Beau Desert. Bond went for a swim while Quarrel 
went into the cottage and made it comfortable.

Later, when the stars and the moon shone down, the 
sound of the sea died to a whisper. There was the short silence
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between the two great winds of Jamaica, then the palm trees 
began to whisper again.

‘T he “Undertaker’s89 W ind”,’ Quarrel told Bond. ‘It blows 
the bad air out of the island at night, from six until six. Then 
every morning the “Doctor’s W ind” comes and blows the sweet 
air in from the sea. W ell, that’s what we call them in Jam aica.’ 
He grinned at Bond. ‘I guess you and the Undertaker’s W ind 
have got the same job, Captain.’

Bond laughed.
The next day Bond began his training. Every morning before 

breakfast, he swam a mile90 up the beach and then ran back 
along the sand. A t about nine o’clock, he and Quarrel would 
go out in a canoe91. T h e single sail took them fast through the 
water, up the coast to Bloody Bay and Orange Bay. Here they 
pulled the canoe up onto the beach and then went underwater 
hunting. Bond used a mask and an old harpoon gun.

‘Fish don’t usually attack a man,’ Quarrel told him. ‘Except 
the barracuda -  a big, dangerous fish with very sharp teeth .’

By the end of the week, Bond could swim two miles 
without feeling tired. His hand was completely better and he 
was sunburnt.

Quarrel was pleased with him. ‘You’re ready for Surprise, 
Captain,’ he said.

In the evening of the eighth day, they came back to the 
cottage to find Strangways waiting for them. He had good 
news for them. Felix Leiter had lost an arm and a leg, but he 
would not die.

‘He says that h e’s sorry not to be with you,’ Strangways told 
Bond. ‘Also, the Secatur sails tomorrow for Surprise and should 
be here before dark. Mr Big is on board. O h, and a girl called 
Solitaire is with him. Do you know anything about her?’

‘N ot much,’ Bond said. ‘But I’d like to get her away from 
him. Sh e’s not one of his team.’

He went outside and looked up at the stars. There was a lot
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to think about and a lot to do. Discovering the secret of the 
treasure, killing a dangerous criminal -  and rescuing Solitaire.

After dinner Strangways gave Bond several books about sharks 
and dangerous fish and then left the cottage. A t six the next 
morning, Bond and Quarrel left for Beau Desert. They were 
there by ten thirty. There was a path between the trees that 
went down to the little beach house. From inside the house, 
Bond looked across at the island. T h e top half was hidden 
by trees, but the cliff looked grey and dangerous in the half-
shadow made by the hot sun.

A fter lunch, Bond looked at the things that had come from 
London. Strangways had sent them on from Kingston. Bond 
put on the black frogman’s suit. It fitted him perfectly. He 
checked the air bottle, the harpoon gun, dagger92 and torch. 
Finally, there was the heavy limpet mine with some fuses93. 
These were in a box with the word D A N G ER  printed on top 
of it.

A t five o’clock, Strangways arrived with news of the 
Secatur.

‘They’ve come through Port Maria and will be here soon,’ 
he said. ‘Mr Big has a passport in the name of Gallia. T he girl’s 
passport is in the name of Sim one Latrelle. There are more 
than a hundred empty fish tanks on board.’

‘I’ll go to the island tomorrow night,’ Bond told him.
Quarrel came in from outside. ‘T h e  Secatur is coming in 

through the coral reef94 now, Captain.’
They went a little nearer to the water’s edge and looked 

at the boat through binoculars. It was a good-looking yacht, 
about seventy foot long, black and grey and built for speed. O n 
the island, three men came running down the cliff steps to the 
jetty. They caught the ropes which were thrown from the boat 
as it dropped its anchor into the deep water. M r Big stepped 
onto the jetty, then started to climb the steps. Two men were

70

Bond Gets Ready

carrying a stretcher95 and they followed Mr Big up the steps. 
There was a woman’s body tied to the stretcher. Bond could 
see Solitaire’s black hair through his binoculars.

T h en  twelve men made a line up the steps and handed 
the empty fish tanks up one after another. Quarrel counted 
a hundred and twenty tanks. After this, tanks half filled with 
water and sand were carefully passed down to the boat -  one 
every five minutes.

‘They’re putting things on the boat already!’ Strangways 
said. ‘T h at’s unusual. Maybe they’re all leaving the island in 
the morning. This could be the last trip.’

Bond and Strangways walked back up through the trees, 
leaving Quarrel to watch the yacht. They sat down in the 
living room and Strangways got himself a glass of whisky. Bond 
stared out of the window, thinking.

It was six o’clock. T he moon was already in the sky, and the 
Undertaker’s W ind blew softly through the palm trees. He had 
travelled two thousand miles for this, but suddenly he hated 
and feared the sea, and everything in it. And in a few hours, he 
would walk alone under that black sheet of water.

Quarrel came in soon after. ‘They’re working with lights 
now, Captain,’ he said. ‘A  tank every five minutes. I guess 
that’ll be ten hours work. They’ll finish at about four in the 
morning, but won’t sail before six. It would be too dangerous 
to leave earlier. It needs to be light for them to find their way 
through the coral reef.’

‘I ’ll start at ten o ’clock tonight,’ said Bond. ‘I’ll go from the 
rocks at the left of the beach. Can you get us some dinner and 
then get the things I need out onto the beach?’

Quarrel left the room, and Bond turned to Strangways. 
‘Now, tell me what they usually do when they’re ready to sail,’ 
he said. ‘How long does it take them to get away from the 
island? If it’s the last trip, they’ll leave with extra m en.’

Listening carefully to Strangways, Bond suddenly felt strong
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Bond Gets Ready

again and his fear disappeared. They talked for the next three 
hours.

A t ten o’clock, Bond was on the beach and dressed in his 
black frogman’s suit. Quarrel and Strangways watched him go 
slowly into the sea and vanish under the water.

‘Go safely,’ said Quarrel quietly.
Then he and Strangways moved back through the bright 

moonlight and the shadows to the house to wait for Bond’s 
return.
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Food for the Barracudas

' I 'he heavy limpet mine was tied to Bond’s chest and carried 
JL him straight to the bottom of the sea. He was carrying the 

harpoon gun in his left hand, but he travelled fast through the 
water. He was warm in the frogman’s suit and breathed easily 
with the help of the compressed air.

It took him fifteen minutes to swim through fifty yards of 
the dangerously sharp coral reef, which was full of all sorts of 
sea life. He stopped and rested for a short time at the edge of 
the reef. Suddenly, he felt something moving tightly around 
both of his legs. It was an octopus96.

Bond tried to swim away, but the octopus was stronger than 
he had expected. In a moment he would be pulled down flat 
onto his face. T h en  it might be impossible to fight the octopus 
with the heavy mine on his chest and the air bottle on his 
back.

Bond quickly pulled the dagger from his belt and tried to 
attack the octopus between his legs. But then he was turned 
over onto his back and was lying on the sand. A t that moment, 
he remembered the harpoon gun and reached for it. He pulled 
the trigger. Immediately a thick, black cloud came from the 
octopus’s body. One of Bond’s legs came free, and then the 
other. He pulled hard on the harpoon line and another black 
cloud poured towards him -  the harpoon was free.

Bond was breathing heavily. Above him, a stream of air 
bubbles went up to the surface of the water. Bond swore, afraid 
that they might be seen from the yacht, but there was nothing 
he could do.

He swam forwards. There were shadows of big fish on the 
moonlit sand, some as long as himself. O ne shadow followed
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beside him, and he looked up to see a shark. Its nose was 
following Bond’s line of air bubbles. After about a minute, it 
moved away.

T hen there were large barracudas moving above him and 
looking down out of their angry eyes. They were interested 
in him and his bubbles and followed him silently. There were 
about twenty of them by the time Bond was near the island.

Suddenly, Bond could see the bottom of the Secatur above 
him. He looked at his watch. It was three minutes past eleven 
o ’clock. He took a seven-hour fuse from his side pocket and 
pushed it into the limpet mine. The rest of the fuses he buried 
in the sand. He did not want them to be found if he was 
caught.

After this, he swam up, carrying the mine between his 
hands. He fixed it as carefully as he could to the bottom of the 
Secatur and turned to swim towards some rocks. T h en  he saw 
what was happening behind him.

T he barracudas seemed to be going crazy. They were 
swimming round in circles like mad dogs, and three sharks 
were moving quickly between them in the water. Bond was hit 
in the face and knocked again and again. A t any moment, his 
rubber suit would be torn and his skin broken and bleeding. 
T h en  the barracudas would smell the blood and be attacking 
him in seconds.

He swam fast along the bottom of the boat with his harpoon 
gun ready. Suddenly, the sea above him turned red. Pieces of 
something floated down towards him. He caught a piece and 
looked at it.

Up above, someone was throwing dead fish and pouring 
blood into the water. Now Bond understood why there were 
so many barracudas and sharks around the island. Mr Big was 
feeding them. They were his protection against people who 
wanted to have a look around, three of whom had already been 
half-eaten by the fish.
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Something h it Bond hard on his left shoulder, and a large 
barracuda swam away with a piece of black rubber in its mouth. 
Bond felt no pain as he swam wildly towards the rocks. But 
blood was coming from his shoulder, and water was starting to 
come in between the rubber frogman’s suit and his skin.

He was just about to swim up to the water’s surface when he 
saw a wide hole in the rocks in front of him. A  large rock lay 
on its side next to it, and Bond swam behind the rock.

He turned in time to see the barracuda coming towards 
him again. He fired the harpoon gun and h it the fish in the 
centre of its open mouth. T h e fish stopped and tried to close 
its mouth, then it swam away taking the gun, the line and
harpoon with it.

Now Bond saw the cave that the large rock had been hiding. 
He swam through the opening for several yards, then stood 
up on soft sand. He shone his torch on the sides and ceiling 
of the cave. He guessed that it had been dug outwards from 
somewhere in the centre of the island. Probably by Bloody 
Morgan’s men.

T he big rock had been there to cover the entrance. The 
Shark Bay fisherman who had disappeared six months ago must 
have found it. Perhaps a bad storm had moved it. Then  the 
fisherman had found the treasure and had gone to M r Big for 
help selling it. T h at had been a big mistake. Bond guessed that 
the fisherman had been killed and thrown into the Harlem 
River.

Bond guessed that his air bubbles had been seen, but he 
had to go on. He had to stop Solitaire getting on the boat. He 
looked at his watch. Half an hour after midnight. He felt the 
Beretta under his rubber suit. Had it been damaged by water?

He moved on into the cave, shining the torch in front of 
him. After about ten yards, there was a small light in the water 
ahead of him. He switched off the torch and moved towards it. 
There was a wide, shining pool beyond the end of the cave. Its
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white, sandy bottom was as bright as day. Bond stopped near 
the edge of the pool, in the shadows.

He tried to think. Suddenly, he saw a thin stream of his 
blood moving into the pool from his shoulder. He had forgotten 
the injury from the barracuda, but now it began to hurt.

Suddenly, there was a big splash from the pool and two men 
were swimming towards him with knives in their hands. Before 
Bond could reach his own knife, they had pulled him up to the 
surface of the pool and out onto flat sand. His rubber suit was 
pulled off him, leaving him in swimming shorts.

Bond looked up and saw Mr Big sitting behind a small table. 
He had a pen in one hand, and there were papers on the table. 
He looked calm and bored.

‘Good morning, Mr Bond,’ he said. ‘You took a long time 
coming. W e saw your air bubbles some time ago.’

Bond was in a cave as big as a church. The pool covered 
half the floor. T hen there was the narrow bit of sand he was 
standing on, and the rest of the floor was smooth, flat rock. 
Some steps went up behind M r Big, and there were bright 
lights on the walls.

A  group of men stood to Bond’s left, watching him. There 
were hundreds of gold coins round their feet and rows of 
wooden trays beside them. Some trays were on the floor, and 
partly filled with coins. A  man had stopped at the bottom of 
the steps. He was carrying a full tray of coins. In the left com er 
of the cave, two men stood next to a large metal pot. T he pot 
was hanging over a fire. Beside it were gold cups, plates and 
other things made of gold. Along the wall near them were rows 
o f metal trays, each one filled with flat, bright gold.

M r Big got up slowly from the table and walked over to the 
steps in the rock. He started to climb.

‘Bring Mr Bond up,’ he said.
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Death at Sea

They climbed up the steps past an open door near the 
ceiling. Mr Big stopped to rest for a moment, then up they 

went again. Bond counted more than eighty steps before they 
reached the top, where there was a metal door. Mr Big unlocked 
the door and opened it, and Bond and his guard followed him 
through into a long narrow room. There were metal shackles97 
low down in the walls. A  light hung down from the roof at the 
far end. There was someone lying under it, under a blanket.

‘Solitaire,1 said Mr Big softly.
Bond started to move forward, but the guard moved quickly 

and stopped him. Then  Mr Big turned round. He had a small 
gun in his hand. He pointed it at Bond.

‘You can let him go,’ Mr Big told Bond’s guard.
Bond went past Mr Big. Solitaire was on her feet and 

moving towards him. She saw his face and began to run.
‘Jam es!’ she cried. ‘Jam es!’
They held each other.
‘G et me some rope,’ said Mr Big.
‘It’s all right, Solitaire,’ said Bond, but he knew that 

everything was not all right. ‘I’m here now.’
Solitaire was very pale and there were black circles under 

her eyes. She wore a dirty white suit and looked thin. She saw 
the blood on his shoulder and down his arm. ‘Oh, my darling, 
what is it?’ she said, and started to cry.

‘Tie them up,’ said Mr Big.
T he black guard came towards them with rope in his hands. 

For a second or two, Bond thought about attacking him.
‘No, Mr Bond,’ M r Big said simply.
T h e guard tied Bond’s arms behind his back.
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‘Over there,’ said Mr Big. He pointed at one of the 
shackles.

T he guard knocked Bond’s legs from under him, and Bond 
fell onto his injured shoulder. T he guard pulled him across to 
the shackle, then put the rope through the shackle and down 
to Bond’s legs. He tied them together. T h en  he walked back to 
Solitaire and tied her to a shackle opposite Bond.

M r Big looked at his watch. ‘G o ,’ he told the guard. He 
closed the big door behind the man, then turned to Bond. 
‘Four of my men have died because of you. My people are 
beginning to question my power, so something must be done. 
W hat happened to the American was not enough, so you and 
the girl can die together.’ He looked at his watch again. ‘In 
two-and-a-half hours, at six o ’clock, you will be tied together. 
Then  you’ll be pulled through the sea behind the yacht when 
it leaves. T he coral reef will cut you into pieces, and the sharks 
will smell the blood. They’ll finish the job for m e.’

Bond looked at him. ‘You’re a big man,’ he said.. ‘And one 
day you’ll die a big and terrible death. If  you kill us, that death 
will come very fast. I ’ve arranged for it to happen.’ His mind 
was working fast while he spoke. He was thinking of the timed 
fuse in the limpet mine and counting hours and minutes. But 
would he and Solitaire be dead before that time came? He 
smiled at her, but she did not seem to see him.

Suddenly, she shouted, ‘I don’t know. I can’t see. It’s so near, 
so close. There is much death, but . . . ’

‘Solitaire!’ shouted Bond. ‘Stop !’
He was afraid that the strange things she saw in the future 

might give a warning to Mr Big. She looked strangely back at 
Bond, but said nothing.

‘Nothing you have arranged can hurt me, Mr Bond,’ said 
M r Big. He stood in the doorway and looked at them. ‘I ’ll leave 
you now. A  short, but very good night to you both.’
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It was not yet light when the guards came for Bond and Solitaire. 
Their leg ropes were cut and they were taken up to the open 
ground above. They stood by some trees, and Bond breathed 
in the cool morning air. As they stood waiting, they saw men 
walking past carrying things. Everyone was leaving the island.

Bond moved nearer to Solitaire. After Mr Big had left them, 
he had told her about the limpet mine. It would explode a few 
minutes after six o’clock, so it was important that the Secatur 
sailed at six. If they were still on the jetty beside the boat, they 
would be killed with Mr Big.

Bond guessed that they would be pulled along at least 
seventy yards behind the yacht. T he Secatur would go through 
the reef before them. W ith luck, the mine would explode 
before he and Solitaire reached the reef and were cut to pieces. 
But would they be killed by the explosion?

They had talked all night and held each other. ‘Don’t worry 
about me,’ Solitaire had told him. ‘I’m not afraid, although 
there is much death very close. Do you love me a little?’

‘Yes,’ Bond had told her. ‘I do.’
It was getting lighter now, and Bond could hear the sound 

of the boat’s engines. Mr Big appeared with a briefcase98 in 
his hand. He looked up at the sky and said in a loud voice, 
‘Thank you, Bloody Morgan. W e’ll spend your treasure w ell!’ 
He turned towards the guards, who were staring at him. ‘Is 
everything on the boat?’ he asked.

‘Yes, Sir,’ replied one of the men.
‘T h en  take them down,’ M r Big said.
T he guards took Bond and Solitaire to the edge of the cliff 

and down the steps. M r Big followed them. There were two 
men on the jetty standing next to the yacht’s ropes.

‘Tie something round Mr Bond’s shoulder. I don’t want any 
blood in the water yet,’ M r Big told Bond’s guard.

O ne of the guards cut some of Solitaire’s skirt off and used 
it for Bond’s shoulder. He cut their hands free then pushed
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them together, face to face. Their arms were put round each 
other and then they were both tied tightly together. One end 
of some of the rope on the jetty was tied to the back of the 
Secatur. T he other end was tied to Solitaire and Bond.

For a moment, Bond could see Mr Big’s watch. It was five 
minutes to six.

Mr Big looked at them. ‘Their legs can stay free,’ he said, 
and he stepped onto the yacht. He went to the back of the boat 
and sat where he would be able to see Bond and Solitaire.

The two guards went on board. T h e two men on the jetty 
untied the yacht’s ropes and followed. Moments later, the 
Secatur moved away from the island. Ж Р

‘Look out!’ said Bond as he saw the rope disappearing fast 
into the water. Bond and Solitaire were suddenly pulled off the 
jetty and into the sea. For a second, they both went under the 
water and then they were up again. T he water was rushing past 
them and they were pulled through the waves.

‘Breathe, breathe!’ shouted Bond. ‘Put your legs between 
m ine!’

A fter a time, the boat’s speed dropped as the Secatur moved 
slowly through the reef. Suddenly, Bond felt the rope tighten 
again.

‘Breathe, Solitaire, breathe!’ he shouted, as they started to 
speed through the water once more. It must be after six o’clock 
now. W hat had happened to the mine?

They were only about thirty yards from the reef now. Now 
twenty .. .  ten . . .

Suddenly, the breath was knocked from his body. Solitaire 
and Bond went right up out of the sea before falling back again.
T h e sky lit up with the huge explosion.

They stopped moving through the waves and Bond felt the 
heavy rope pulling them under the water. He pushed hard with 
his legs and they came to the surface. Solitaire’s head was on 
his shoulder and her eyes were shut.
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T he reef had protected them from the explosion, but now 
the sea was pulling them towards it. Suddenly, Bond felt the 
sharp coral against the back of his legs and arms. There was 
something sharp under his feet, and he pushed against it. 
His feet were on the coral and then he felt the pain of a rock 
pushing into his back.

He rested for a minute. Solitaire was breathing thinly. 
There was blood in the water around him, but he guessed that 
the big fish would not come into the sharp reef.

He looked out to sea. T he Secatur was gone, and a great 
cloud of smoke was blowing towards the land. There were 
pieces of the boat all over the water. He saw dead fish and 
parts of men’s bodies.

Bond saw the head of a huge fish come out of the water. 
It dived down onto something. There was a long and terrible 
scream, then two black arms suddenly went up into the air and 
disappeared again.

Two men started to swim towards the reef. O ne stopped, 
his hands splashing the water wildly before they disappeared 
under the surface. He began to scream as he was attacked 
under the water. The other man was getting nearer to Bond 
and Solitaire. Bond saw a large head with blood pouring down 
over its face. It was Mr Big.

His eyes were wide open and staring madly as he swam 
towards Bond. Suddenly, he gave a scream of pain and his head 
went under the water and came up again. There was a cloud 
of dark blood in the sea around him. Two large black shadows 
moved out of the cloud, then raced back again. H alf of Mr 
Big’s left arm came out of the water. It had no hand on it, but 
the great head was still alive and screaming.

T he head went under once more. W hen it came to the 
surface again, its mouth was closed. The yellow eyes still 
seemed to look at Bond, but they were dead eyes. Then  the 
shark’s head came up and its open mouth came down on the
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head. There was a horrible crunch, then both head and shark 
went under the water for the last time. There was silence.

Bond went on staring at the blood-red water for several 
seconds. T hen Solitaire made a small noise and there was a 
shout from behind him. Bond turned and saw canoes coming 
towards him -  and Quarrel was in the front canoe, yards ahead 
of the rest.

For the first time since his childhood, Bond felt tears come 
into his blue-grey eyes. They were tears of happiness and 
relief. Fie looked across at the soft green hills of Jamaica. A  
fresh, north-easterly wind had started to blow and the sun was 
beginning to shine down on the water. Life was suddenly very 
good.
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iarrel brought them to the little beach at Beau Desert, 
and Bond half-carried Solitaire to the house. After they 
ad baths and cleaned themselves, Quarrel took Bond to 
the hospital at Port Maria. The doctors worked on his shoulder, 

then Quarrel brought him back to the house. Bond was tired 
and covered in bandages. A nother doctor had visited Solitaire, 
who had been cut by the coral, but was not badly hurt. Some 
new clothes would be brought for her from Kingston the next 
day.

There were police on the Isle of Surprise now. Strangways 
had gone straight to them and told them what had happened. 
T he Secatur, or what was left of her, was at the bottom of the sea 
in the bay, and police divers were on their way from Kingston. 
News reporters had heard about the explosion and there was 
now a police guard at Beau Desert to keep them away.

A  full report was sent to M, and to Washington. The 
information would be enough to arrest" Mr Big’s men in 
Harlem and S t Petersburg for gold smuggling100.

Strangways arrived back from Kingston soon after Bond 
returned from the hospital. He had a message from M. It read:

HAVE YOU PUT Ш  A  CLAIM 101 FO R US FOR THE
T R E A SU R E ? P LE A SE  DO.
W ELL DONE. TA KE TWO W E E K S’ HOLIDAY.

‘I put in a claim at Government House for you,’ said 
Strangways. ‘But the British and American governments will 
both want the treasure.’

They talked some more, then Strangways left.
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A Holiday for Two

The evening was cool after the hot day. Solitaire came out of 
the house and walked across the grass. She was not wearing 
any shoes and was carrying a tray with two glasses. She put it 
down on the garden table near Bond’s chair.

‘I hope they’re O K ,’ she said. ‘I’ve never made a martini 
before.’

Bond looked up at her. She was wearing a pair of his white 
silk pyjamas. She kissed him, then sat down on the warm grass 
and put her head against his knee.

‘You look wonderful,’ Bond told her. They sat for a while, 
looking out between the trees as the sunlight started to 
disappear.

There was a crash of broken dishes from the kitchen at 
the back of the house. Then  there was the sound of Quarrel 
shouting at someone.

‘Poor Quarrel,’ said Solitaire. ‘H e’s borrowed the best cook 
in the village and is making us a special dinner. But it’s supposed 
to be a surprise for us.’

After they had eaten dinner, Bond told Solitaire about M ’s 
message. ‘Two weeks’ holiday will be wonderful. But I’m badly 
hurt. I’ll also need someone special who can look after me and 
help me to get better. Do you know of anyone?’ he asked, and 
grinned at her.

There was love in Solitaire’s eyes as she looked up at him 
and smiled. ‘W ell, I haven’t got any other plans for the next 
two weeks . . . ’ she said.

I
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Points for Understanding

1 There are lots of numbers and dates in this chapter. Explain what 
these numbers and dates refer to: (a) fifteen hundred (b) 1650
(c) 1675 to 1688 (d) nearly a thousand (e) 21st November.

2 ‘But the FBI has a problem.’ W hat was this problem?
3 W ho was Mr Big and what two things did he own?
4 Complete these sentences:

(a) M thought that someone was using the gold coins to

(b) Mr Big was probably working fo r.......................................... •

_2_

1 Where did Halloran take James Bond?
2 Bond saw someone looking at him from the back of a passing car. 

W ho did he think this person was?
3 W hich organizations did these people work for: (a) Halloran 

(b) Captain Dexter (c) Felix Leiter?
4 Bond and Felix Leiter had worked together before. True or false? 

Explain your answer.
5 Why had Bond come to America?

_3_

1 Mr Big’s life story was described in this chapter. Are these facts true 
or false? Explain your answers.
(a) Mr Big went to America because he wanted to be in the 
American armed forces.
(b) He learnt to speak French while he was working for the 
American Secret Service.
(c) The FBI does not know exactly what he did when the Second 
World War finished.
(d) Mr Big was a dangerous man and people were frightened of him.

2 Why was Bond told to say ‘check’ and ‘cab’, and not ‘bill’ and ‘taxi’?
3 This chapter is called ‘A  Mysterious Parcel’. W hat happened to the 

parcel and what was inside it?

±

1 Complete these sentences:
(a) The Secatur often sailed from .......................................... to

(b) The yacht brought.......................................... and
.......................................... to the Ourobouros Worm and Bait Shippers
warehouse.

2 In this chapter, what were the following people asked to do:
(a) Captain Dexter (b) Bond (c) Leiter (d) ‘The Whisper’?

3 Captain Dexter used a well-known British saying, ‘live and let live’. 
W hat did Dexter mean when he said this?

4 What did Bond and Leiter do to prepare for their visit to Harlem?

1 Name the five places that Bond and Leiter visited in this chapter.
2 Describe Harlem.
3 ‘It cost me twenty dollars.’ W hat did Leiter pay for?
4 Why did Mr Big want Bond and Leiter to have table Z at 

The Boneyard?
5 How many men were there in the small downstairs room at 

The Boneyard?
6 Where were the men going to take Bond?

_6^

1 W hat were these objects used for, and by whom, in this chapter:
(a) the intercom (b) the riding whip (c) the belt
(d) the pack of playing cards?

2 W hat did Mr Big ask Bond?
3 W hat was special about Solitaire?
4 Describe what Solitaire was wearing.
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7

1 Mr Big said he was not going to kill Bond and Leiter. W hat reason 
did he give?

2 This chapter is called ‘Death on the Stairs’. W ho died and how 
were they killed?

3 How many gun shots were fired in this chapter and who fired them?
4 ‘Bond opened the envelope with his right hand.’ Why did he use 

his right hand?

_8_

1 W hat was Mr Big’s complaint to the FBI? W hich part of what he 
said was not true?

2 How many telephone calls did Bond make and receive in this 
chapter?

3 In his phone call to M, Bond used some strange words and phrases. 
W hat did these words and phrases really mean:
(a) our main customer (b) as sick as a person can be (c) Federated 
(d) Felicia (e) San Pedro?

4 In his phone call to Solitaire, Bond lied about one fact. W hat was 
that lie?

1 W ho was ‘The Robber’ and what had he been asked to do?
2 Someone helped Bond in this chapter. W ho was it and how did this 

person help?
3 Put these events in the correct order:

(a) Bond got on the train.
(b) Bond and Solitaire ate lunch.
(c) Solitaire telephoned Bond.
(d) A man gave Bond a warning.
(e) Solitaire got on the train.
(f) Solitaire escaped from her singing lesson.
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10

1 W hat happened at these times: (a) 7 pm (b) 9 pm (c) 10 pm
(d) 11 pm (e) 1 am?

2 W ho did Bond think the visitor in the night was?
3 W hat did he think the visitor was planning to do?
4 Explain why the visitor managed to escape.
5 Why did Bond decide not to chase the man?

11

1 How long did Bond and Solitaire spend in Jacksonville?
2 ‘I’ve been like a prisoner there for the last two years.’ W ho said this 

and why did this person feel like a prisoner?
3 How did Bond feel about Solitaire?
4 What happened on the way from the train station to Treasure Island?
5 Why was Leiter surprised when he saw Bond?

12

1 ‘End of James Bond. Except that it’s not.’ How had Bond and 
Solitaire escaped being killed by the bomb?

2 Where did Leiter and Bond go after they had left Solitaire at the 
cottage?

3 A bird died in this chapter. W hat type of bird was it and how did 
it die?

4 The Robber gave Bond and Leiter a warning. W hat was it?

13

1 How did Bond feel when he returned to the cottage and why?
2 W hen Bond woke up, Leiter was not in the cottage. Where had he 

gone?
3 Someone telephoned Bond. W hat did this person ask him to do?
4 Bond did not see Leiter at the hospital because Leiter had never 

been there. True or false? Explain your answer.
5 Leiter was badly hurt in this chapter. W hat caused his injuries?
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14

1 W hat did Bond use these objects for: (a) the glass-cutter
(b) the torch (c) the pocket knife (d) the gold coin?

2 Where had the gold coins been hidden?
3 How much did Bond think each boat full of coins was worth?
4 Where did The Robber fall and what was underneath it?
5 W hat made Bond angry?

15

1 W ho was watching Bond at the airport and why?
2 W hat was the Isle of Surprise?
3 W hat did the local stories say about the Isle of Surprise?
4 How many people had already died trying to get close to the island?
5 Bond asked Strangways for a lot of equipment. W hat do you think 

Bond was planning to do with these things?

16

1 Match the sentence beginnings and endings.
(a) The Isle of Surprise was (1) on the western side of

Shark Bay.
(b) The house at Beau Desert was (2) up the coast to Bloody Bay.
(c) Bond and Quarrel stopped (3) in the centre of Shark Bay. 

to eat
(d) They were going to stay (4) on the eastern side of 

for a week Shark Bay.
(e) They sailed a small boat (5) on the western end of the

island.
2 ‘I guess you and the Undertaker’s Wind have got the same job, 

Captain.’ W hat did Quarrel mean when he said this?
3 W hen Strangways came to the cottage on the eighth day he 

brought three pieces of news. W hat were they?
4 W hen did Quarrel expect the yacht to leave the island?
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17

1 Bond was attacked by two animals in this chapter. W hat attacked 
him and how did he escape?

2 W hat time did Bond want the bomb to explode?
3 Mr Big had been expecting Bond. How did he know Bond was 

coming?
4 ‘In the left comer of the cave, two men stood next to a large metal 

pot.’ W hat was the pot being used for?

18

1 Solitaire was tied up when Bond saw her in the upstairs room. True 
or false? Explain your answer.

2 ‘Four of my men have died because of you.’ W ho were these men?
3 Bond told Solitaire that he wanted the Secatur to leave the island 

by six o’clock. Why was this important?
4 The reef protected Bond and Solitaire from two things. W hat were 

those things?
5 Why did Bond think that ‘life was suddenly very good’?

19

1 Complete these sentences:
(a) The police wanted the reporters t o .......................................... .
(b) The British Secret Service and the FBI wanted to 
 Mr Big’s men fo r ........................................... .
(c) M wanted Bond to .......................................... and

(d) Quarrel wanted to .......................................... for Bond and
Solitaire.
(e) Bond wanted Solitaire to .......................................... ..
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Glossary

1 mine (page 4)
a bomb that is hidden under the ground or under water and 
explodes when it is touched. A  limpet mine is attached to a boat or 
ship.

2 gambling (page 5)
an activity in which you risk money in the hope of winning more if 
you are lucky

3 naval conference (page 6)
a conference is a large meeting where people who are interested in 
a particular subject discuss ideas. A  naval conference is a meeting 
where people discuss ideas relating to a country’s navy -  the part of 
a country’s armed forces that uses ships.

4 intercom  (page 8)
a system that allows people in different parts of a building, aircraft 
or ship to speak to each other

5 Commander in Chief (page 8)
someone in charge of the whole of the armed forces in a country

6 melted down -  to melt something down (page 9) 
to use heat to change a metal into a liquid

7 gold bar (page 9)
gold is a heavy yellow metal which is used by every country in the 
world as a form of money. Before it is made into coins, gold is valued 
by weight and stored as a solid block of gold called a gold bar.

8 network (page 9)
a group of people or organizations that work together

9 sleeping car attendant (page 9)
someone whose job is to help people who travel on a part of a train 
that has beds in it for passengers to sleep in

10 yacht (page 9)
a large expensive boat that is used for racing or sailing

11 gangster (page 9)
a member of an organized group of criminals
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12 SM ER SH  (page 11)
in the past, SMERSH  was a part of the Russian Secret Service. The 
name meant Death to Spies.

13 Idlewild Airport (page 12)
the name for J. F. Kennedy Airport in New York before 1964

14 chauffeur (page 12)
someone whose job is to drive a rich or important person around in 
their car

15 CIA (page 13)
the Central Intelligence Agency: a U S government organization that 
collects secret information about other countries and protects secret 
information about the U S

16 F B I  (page 13)
the Federal Bureau o f  Investigation: a U S government department 
that deals with serious crimes that affect more than one state

17 case (page 13)
a crime that the police are trying to solve

18 threatened — to threaten someone (page 14)
to tell someone that you will cause them harm or problems, 
especially in order to make them do something

19 collar (page 15)
the part of a coat, shirt or dress that goes around your neck

20 casual (page 15)
casual clothes or shoes are comfortable and suitable for wearing in 
informal situations

21 holster (page 15)
a leather container for a small gun that is fixed to a belt

22 foot (page 15)
a unit used for measuring length that is equal to 12 inches or about
30 centimetres

23 arranged -  to arrange to do something (page 17) 
to make plans for something to happen

24 Homicide (page 17)
the department of the police that deals with homicide -  the crime of 
killing someone
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25 jetty (page 17)
a long narrow structure that goes from the land out into a lake, sea 
or river to provide a place for boats to stop

26 bait (page 17)
food that is used for attracting and catching fish

27 coral (page 17)
a hard pink, white or red substance that grows in the sea

28 aquarium  (page 17)
a glass container for fish and other water animals

29 tropical (page 17)
from the hottest parts of the world

30 ivarehouse (page 17)
a big building where large amounts of goods are stored

31 switchboard (page 18)
the electronic equipment that is used to connect telephone calls in 
a large business or organization

32 whisper (page 18)
to speak very quietly to someone so that other people cannot hear 
you. This quiet way of speaking is called a whisper. The man at the 
switchboard is called The Whisper because his job is to give people 
secret messages from Mr Big.

33 headset (page 18)
a piece of radio or telephone equipment that you wear over your 
ears with a part that you can speak into

34 steel (page 19)
a strong, silver metal

35 urgently (page 20)
expressing the feeling of wanting something very much or wanting 
it immediately

36 warn (page 20)
to tell someone about a possible problem or danger so that they can 
avoid it or deal with it

37 boxer (page 20)
someone who takes part in boxing -  a sport in which two people 
fight each other wearing large leather gloves

i
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38 sweetcom  (page 21 )
the small yellow seeds of maize plants which are cooked and eaten 
as a vegetable

39 pretended -  to pretend (page 21)
to behave in a particular way because you want someone to believe 
that something is true when it is not

40  act (page 23)
a short performance

41 mask (page 24)
something that you wear in order to cover part or all of your face

42 riding whip (page 26)
a long thin piece of leather with a handle on one end that is used 
for making horses move faster

43 investigate (page 27)
to try to find out all the facts about something in order to learn the 
truth about it

44  treasury (page 27)
the government department responsible for a country’s financial 
matters

45 inch  (page 27)
a unit for measuring length that is equal to 2.54 centimetres

46  telepathic (page 27)
able to communicate using telepathy -  the ability of people to 
communicate directly with another person’s mind, without using 
words

47 Solitaire (page 27)
the woman is from Haiti, where one of the official languages is 
French. Solitaire is the French word for alone or hnely. The woman 
is called Solitaire because she chooses not to have a boyfriend or 
husband.

48  playing cards (page 29)
playing cards are pieces of strong card or paper with numbers and 
pictures printed on them. There are four swits -  or different families
-  in a pack (or deck) of playing cards. These are spades, hearts, 
diamonds and clubs.

M  SPADES W  HEARTS A  DIAMONDS Д | |  CLUBS-A- Y V

97



Each suit has 13 cards in it: ace, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, jack or 
knave, queen and king. The ace, jack or knave, queen and king 
have different values in some card games.
Solitaire uses a queen o f  spades, which has an image of a black 
woman, to represent herself and a knave o f  hearts, which has an 
image of a man, to represent James Bond.

49 D am n  you! (page 30)
an impolite expression used when you are annoyed with someone

50 sw eat  (page 30)
to produce a liquid called sweat on the surface of your skin when 
you are hot, nervous or ill

51 fa in ted  -  to faint (page 30)
to suddenly be in a state like sleep, in which you do not see, feel or 
think, for a short time

52 bullet (page 30)
a small piece of metal that is shot from a gun and causes serious 
damage to the person or thing it hits

53 sw ore -  to swear (page 30)
to use words that are deliberately offensive, for example because 
you are angry

54 n u isan ce  (page 31)
someone or something that is annoying or causes continuous 
problems

55 in jured  (page 31)
hurt in an accident or attack. Physical harm done to a person or 
part of their body is called an injury.

56 steel-cap p ed  (page 31)
when the top front part of a shoe or boot is covered with steel

57 kn ocked  out -  to knock someone out (page 34)
to make someone fall to the ground in a state like sleep, in which 
they do not see, feel or think

58 grinned -  to grin (page 35) 
to smile showing your teeth

59 conductor  (page 36)
someone on a bus or train who checks passengers’ tickets and 
collects money
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60 causeway (page 36)
a raised road or path across ground that is wet or covered by water

61 subway (page 42)
an underground tunnel that people can walk through to go under a 
road or under train tracks

62 cottage (page 48)
a small house, usually in a village or in the countryside

63 kidnapped -  to kidnap someone (page 49)
to illegally take someone away and make them a prisoner, especially 
in order to make their family or a government give you money. The 
act of doing this is called kidnapping.

64 signal (page 50)
a piece of equipment with coloured lights on it that tells the driver 
of a vehicle to stop, go or slow down

65 waterfront (page 51)
an area of land that is next to a river, lake or the sea

66 trigger (page 52)
the part of a gun that you pull with your finger to make the gun fire

67 cop (page 52) 
a police officer

68 clue (page 55)
an object or fact that helps someone to solve a crime or mystery

69 patient (page 56)
someone who is receiving medical treatment

70 bandage (page 56)
a long thin piece of material that you put around an injured part of 
your body

71 alibi (page 57)
someone who has an alibi can prove that they were somewhere else 
when a crime was committed

72 tank (page 57)
a glass container for fish, snakes etc

73 harbour (page 57)
an area of water near the land where it is safe for boats to stay

74 torch (page 59)
a small electric light that you hold in your hand
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75 poisonous (page 60)
a poisonous animal or plant is capable of producing poison -  a 
substance that can kill you or make you ill if you eat, drink or 
breathe it

76 blade (page 60)
the thin sharp part of a knife, tool or weapon that cuts things

77 yard (page 60)
a unit for measuring length that is equal to 0.91 metres

78 passageway (page 60)
a long narrow area with walls on each side that leads from one room 
or place to another

79 trapdoor (page 62)
a small door that covers an opening in the floor, ceiling or wall

80 patch (page 66)
a cover that you wear over an injured eye

81 treasure hunter (page 66)
a hunter is someone who looks for a particular thing. Treasure 
hunters look for treasure -  valuable things, for example jewels, gold 
etc

82 suspicious (page 67)
if something is suspicious, you think that it might be bad or dangerous

83 frogman suit (page 67)
a frogman is someone who does police or military work under water. 
Frogmen wear special clothes, or suits, and use special equipment.

84 compressed air bottle (page 67)
a container for air, used for breathing under water

85 harpoon (page 67)
a pole with a thin sharp part that is fixed to a rope, used for hunting 
whales and big fish

86 binoculars (page 68)
a piece of equipment with two parts that you hold against your eyes 
and look through to see distant objects

87 anchor (page 68)
to prevent a boat from moving by dropping a heavy object called an 
anchor into the water

88 palm tree (page 68)
a tropical tree without branches that has large wide leaves growing 
from its top
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89 undertaker (page 69)
someone whose job is to make arrangements for a funeral -  the 
ceremony that takes place after someone dies

90 mile (page 69)
a unit for measuring distance, equal to 1.609 kilometres or 1760 
yards

91 canoe (page 69)
a light narrow boat that you push through the water using a short 
pole with a flat end or with two flat ends called a paddle

92 dagger (page 70)
a small weapon with a short handle and a long sharp blade

93 fuse (page 70)
an object like string, or a piece of electrical equipment, that is 
used to make a bomb explode

94 coral reef (page 70)
a hard natural structure under the sea that is formed from coral

95 stretcher (page 71)
a type of bed that is used for carrying someone who is injured or ill

96 octopus (page 74)
a sea animal with a soft round body and eight long arms

97 shackles (page 78)
a pair of connected metal rings that can be locked onto the wrists 
or legs of a prisoner

98 briefcase (page 80)
a case for carrying documents

99 arrest (page 85)
if the police arrest someone, they take that person to a police 
station because they think that he or she has committed a crime

100 smuggling (page 85)
the activity of taking someone or something secretly or illegally 
into or out of a place

101 claim (page 85)
an official request for something that you believe you have a right 
to

Definitions adapted from the Macmillan English Dictionary 2nd Edition ©Macmillan Publishers Ltd 2007 
www.macmillandictionaries.com
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Exercises
Background Information
Choose the correct information to complete the sentences.

1 The author of Live and Let Die, lan Fleming, wasfTngUshV American.

2 Fleming first worked as a banker / journalist.

3 Fleming learnt about spies when working as a journalist in 
Geneva / Moscow.

4 During the Second World War, Fleming was in the British 
air force I navy.

5 The first book written by Fleming was called Live and Let Die I 
Casino Royale.

6 The James Bond novels were written during the 1950s-1960s / 
1970s-1980s.

7 The first James Bond novel to be filmed was Live and Let Die I Dr N o.

8 The actor Sean Connerv I Roger Moore played James Bond in the 
film of Live and Let Die.

9 Live and Let Die takes place during the time of the Cold War I 
Second World War.

10 Jamaica, the island where much of Live and Let Die takes place, was 
officially under British I American rule when Fleming wrote the story.
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Multiple Choice
Tick the best answer.

1 What was the Secatur?
a The network of people that Mr Big used to spread coins, 
b The boat that was used for coin smuggling. /  
с The name which was given to Bloody Morgan’s treasure, 
d The Jamaican island where gold coins were found.

2 Mr Big was believed to be a member of which of the following 
organizations?
a The CIA 
b SMERSH 
с The FBI
d The British Secret Service

3 Which of the following facts about Mr Big is NOT true?
a He got his name, Big, partly from the initials of his full name, 
b He was bom in Jamaica.
с He worked for the American Secret Service in France, 
d People who did not do what he wanted disappeared or were killed.

4 Why did Mr Big bring Solitaire into his office when he was interviewing 
Bond?
a To help guard Bond, 
b To check if Bond was telling the truth, 
с Because she was beautiful and he knew Bond would like her. 
d Because he wanted to send Bond a silent message.

5 What happened to Bond and Leiter in Mr Big’s nightclub The Boneyard? 
a They were both shot but did not die.
b Leiter lost a leg and Bond got a broken finger, 
с Bond got a broken finger and Leiter was knocked out by his guard, 
d Neither was hurt and both escaped.
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6 Why did Bond and Solitaire change trains at Jacksonville?
a Because the train attendant, Baldwin, warned Bond they were in 

danger on the train, 
b Because they received a warning message from the FBI. 
с Because they were in danger and had to return to New York 

immediately.
d Because Mr Big was on the train and wanted to kill Bond and 

Solitaire.

7 What happened to Solitaire while Bond and Leiter were visiting the 
Ourobouros warehouse?
a She decided to run away, back to Mr Big. 
b Two men kidnapped her from The Everglades, 
с She was shot and her body was left on a bed, covered in blood and 

bandages.
d She received a present in a wooden box.

8 Where did Bond find the gold coins?
a Under a trapdoor in the Ourobouros warehouse, 
b In the sand at the bottom of the poisonous fish tanks in the 

Ourobouros warehouse, 
с Inside the shark tanks in the Ourobouros warehouse, 
d Under the jetty outside the Ourobouros warehouse.

9 Who told Bond what had happened to Solitaire and Leiter? 
a Mr Big
b Quarrel 
с The Robber 
d Strangways

10 Which of the following facts about the Isle of Surprise is NOT true? 
a Mr Big lived there.
b It was dangerous to swim there because of the sharks in the water 

around it.
с It was in the centre of a C-shaped bay. 
d Bloody Morgan had hidden his treasure there.
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Word Focus
Complete the table with the nouns or adjectives. The missing words are 
all in the story.

NOUN A D JEC TIVE

1 happiness happy

telepathy 2

3 relieved

4 cruel

5 protective

pain 6

7 dark

poison 8

Complete the sentences with the correct words from the table.

1 Mr Big was known as a ................cruel................. man who hurt those
who went against him.

2 In The Boneyard, after the dancer had come on stage, the lights went 
out and the room was in total.......................................... .

3 Mr Big said that Solitaire was.......................................... and could read
the minds of other people.

4 Bond knew that Tee-Hee was about to hurt him, so he tried to imagine 
th e .......................................... in order to control it.

5 Bond had to be careful when he put his hand in the scorpion fish tank 
as he knew it. was a .......................................... fish.

6 Mr Big fed the sharks around the island because he wanted them there 
for.......................................... .

7 At the end of the story, when Bond and Solitaire were safe, Bond cried 
tears o f.......................................... and........................................... .
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Vocabulary: Travel
Complete the gaps. Use each word in the box once.

Compartment anchor cab tral’hc liglu глоспцег flmlu 
conductor ehatirfew engine sail

1 In the black Chevrolet car, Bond saw a woman wearing a
...............chauffeur.......... ’s uniform in the front seat and a
.......................................... in the back seat.

2 Bond had been told to say ‘.......................................... ’ instead of ‘taxi’
while he was in America.

3 When Bond came into the garage, a big black car was waiting with its
.......................................... running. After shooting the men, he drove
away fast and went straight through a red.......................................... .

4 Leiter told Bond that th e .......................................... on The Silver Phantom
train would have his ticket and that he should go straight to his 
.......................................... and lock himself inside.

5 Bond noticed an FBI agent at the airport watching to make sure he got 
on his.......................................... to Jamaica.

6 Strangways told Bond that Mr Big’s ship would..........................................
into the bay and would then..........................................at a place on the

Isle of Surprise, where the coins would be put on it.

Vocabulary: Crime
Complete each space with a letter to make a word from the story.

1 Mr Big took the...b и.... I.... I . . .... L  ..5...out of Bond’s gun, and Tee-Hee
then put the empty gun back into Bond’s shoulder h .............................. r.

2 The Robber pointed his rifle at the pelican and pulled the
t .............................. r. He then told Bond and Leiter he would
s ................. t them if they returned. He had had enough of
с .......... s (police) like them looking around and asking questions.
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3 The FBI detectives searched for с ................. s, such as fingerprints,
which would show who had kidnapped Solitaire and hurt Leiter. They 
questioned The Robber and two other men, but they all had
a ........................s for that morning, so could not be arrested.

4 A report about what had happened was sent to M and to Washington. 
The information in the report meant that Mr Big’s men would be
a .....................................d for gold s ............................................ g and then
sent to prison.

Grammar: Past perfect active and passive
Choose the correct verb form, past perfect active or passive, to complete 
the sentences.

1 Bloody Morgan (had hidden) / had been hidden his treasure on the Isle 
of Surprise.

2 A meeting had arranged / had been arranged between Bond, Leiter and 
Dexter in New York.

3 Zachary Smith said that the coins had sold I had been sold to him in a 
Harlem bar for twenty dollars each.

4 Solitaire had cut I had been cut by the coral reef, but fortunately she 
was not badly injured.

5 When Bond saw the trapdoor in the Ourobouros warehouse, he guessed 
what had happened I had been happened to Felix Leiter.

6 Bond had reminded / had been reminded to ask for the ‘check’ instead 
of the ‘bill’ in restaurants in America.

7 Since arriving in America, Bond had escaped / had been escaped death 
three times.

8 With a large criminal network of spies working for him, Mr Big 
had become I had been become one of the most powerful men in 
America.
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Grammar: Infinitives and -mg forms
Complete the sentences using the verbs in brackets. Use the infinitive
with or without to or the -ing  form.

1 Mr Big wanted Solitaire................ to work............ (work) as a singer at
his club, The Boneyard.

2 Bond said that he would like.......................................... (meet) anyone
from the SMERSH organization.

3 After Bond had received the mystery parcel, the man with Dexter put
on some protective gloves before.......................................... (collect)
small bits of glass and metal from the carpet.

4 W hen.......................................... (talk) to Solitaire, Bond tried
.......................................... (say) little about what he had found out about
the case so far.

5 Bond had told Baldwin.......................................... (make sure) that the
door of their compartment was locked after they had got off the train at 
Jacksonville.

6 After.......................................... (arrive) in America, Mr Big had done
a few different jobs. He was then forced..........................................
(become) a member of the American armed forces.

7 Bond telephoned the hotel reception and asked for breakfast 
 (be) sent to his room.

8 Strangways told Bond that he should.......................................... (relax)
for a week before.......................................... (try) to get to the island.

9 Fishermen were warned.......................................... (keep) away from the
island.

10 M ordered Bond.......................................... (take) two weeks’ holiday, and
Solitaire offered.......................................... (look) after him.
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Making Questions
Write subject or object questions for the answers given.

Example 1 Who wrote 'Lire and Lei Die’?
bin Fk-inmt; wrote Lhc liiiJ !he.

Example 2 When did he unite it?
He wrore ir in 1954.

Q l Whose

A1 Bloody Morgan’s treasure was found in Jamaica.

Q2 How

A2 Over a thousand coins had been sold in Harlem and Florida.

Q3 Who

A3 Halloran met James Bond at the airport in New York.

Q4 Which

A4 Bond stayed at the St Regis Hotel.

Q5 What

A5 The Ourobouros company sold worms, bait, seashells, coral and fish.

Q6 Why

A6 Mr Big did not kill Bond and Leiter because he did not want a lot of 
people asking questions.

Q7 Who

A7 Tee-Hee Johnson died at the bottom of the stairs.

Q8 How

A8 Bond and Solitaire travelled from New York to Florida by train.

Q9 Where

A9 Bond and Solitaire changed trains at Jacksonville.
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Q10 Where

A10 Bond and Leiter met The Robber outside the Ourobouros warehouse. 

Q ll  Why

A ll  Fishermen didn’t go near the Isle of Surprise because they were 
frightened.

Q12 Whose

A12 Bond’s shoulder was bleeding.

Q13 How

A13 Mr Big was killed by a shark.

Q14 Who

A14 Solitaire offered to look after Bond for the next two weeks.
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Breathe, Solitaire, breathe! Bond shouted, a 
to speed through the water once more. It mus 
o'clock now. What had happened to the mine.

They were only about thirty yards from the 
tw enty ... te n ...

Suddenly, the breath was knocked from his 
Solitaire and Bond went right up out o f the se 
falling back again. The sky lit up with the hug

In Live and Let Die, Bond finds himself in Jam. 
investigating the underworld criminal ‘Mr Big 
Bond gets caught up in many dangerous situ; 
falls in love with Mr Big’s girlfriend, the myst 
beautiful Solitaire.

• Extra grammar and vocabulary exercises

• Notes about the story

• Notes about the life of Ian Fleming

• Points for Understanding comprehension q

• Glossary of difficult vocabulary

• Free resources including worksheets, tests 
data sheets at www.macmillanenglish.com

• Audio CD available for this title

MACMILLAN READERS
This series provides a wide variety of enjoyE 

material for all learners of English. MacmillE 
are retold versions of popular classic and cc 
titles as well as specially written stories, pu 
six levels.

http://www.macmillanenglish.com

